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          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND WATERFRONTS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good afternoon.

          3  My name is Jim Gennaro, Chairman of the Committee on

          4  Environmental Protection.  I'm joined here by

          5  Council Member Yassky, Chair of the Waterfronts

          6  Committee.  We'll introduce the other Members in

          7  turn.  We're joined by Council Member Vallone,

          8  Council Member Addabbo, Council Member Serrano.

          9  Happy to have you all with us here today.  We hope

         10  you all had a good Summer, enjoying our natural

         11  environment, hopefully.  Now that we've had the

         12  ability to bask in the glow of New York City and New

         13  York State's environmental glory, it's time to come

         14  back to work and try to protect them.  The least we

         15  can do.

         16                 We're pleased to be joined by

         17  Commissioner Ward, who with something like five and

         18  a half inches of rain in the last couple of hours

         19  has been dealing with things like near building

         20  collapses and other episodes that, you know, busy

         21  Commissioner have to attend to.  We thank you for

         22  taking time out of your day to spend some time with

         23  us on this very important issue.  And, on a very

         24  time day that we're having this, with all this rain.

         25    Of course, when everyone sees rain, one thinks of
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          2  CSO's, right?  It's a natural thing to think of when

          3  you see all this rain.  We thank everyone who's here

          4  in attendance who, you know, dedicate so much of

          5  your time and advocacy and, in many cases, unpaid

          6  for that.  So, we thank you all for being here.

          7                 So, today, the Committee will focus

          8  on the status of the DEP's combined sewer overflow

          9  or CSO program.  We'll also hear testimony on Intro.

         10  Number 162, sponsored by my colleague, Council

         11  Member Yassky, and that's a bill that has to do with

         12  allowing on- site disposal of run- off water, which

         13  is very much tied into the CSO issue, and he'll

         14  speak about that in his statement, I'm sure.

         15                 Combined sewer overflow is the result

         16  when large amounts of rainfall overload our sewer

         17  systems and cause untreated sanitary and storm

         18  discharge to be released into our water bodies.

         19  Today's testimony will highlight the extent of the

         20  CSO problem and DEP's program for speaking to that

         21  issue, in particularly (sic), we'll learn the

         22  details or some facts about a recently re-

         23  negotiated proposed Consent Order with the New York

         24  State Department of Environmental Conservation,

         25  which is the DEC, and the DEP.  It is this
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          2  Committee's understanding that this document was

          3  noticed today, and that the State DSC will be

          4  accepting public comment on it for the next 30 days.

          5                 In a City almost entirely surrounded

          6  by water, our water bodies are vital natural

          7  resources, the quality of which impacts public

          8  health, wildlife and our way of life. Furthermore,

          9  these waters provide for many recreational

         10  activities, such as swimming, fishing, and boating,

         11  and certainly, they make a great contribution to the

         12  City's economy and their overall quality of life.

         13                 30 years ago, prior to the passage of

         14  the Clean Water Act, New Yorkers could not enjoy

         15  many water- related activities because our waters

         16  were so seriously polluted.  Most of this pollution

         17  came from the discharge of improperly treated

         18  sewage.  Fortunately, things are vastly improved

         19  today.  Measures have been implemented to comply

         20  with Clean Water Act requirements and DEP has

         21  increased the capture of overflow at sewage

         22  treatment plants from 18 percent to 72 percent, over

         23  the last 13 years.

         24                 The DEP and the Commissioner, in

         25  particular, should be commended for their efforts in
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          2  this regard.  But, still, despite these

          3  improvements, CSO's continue to pose a significant

          4  problem.  Overloaded treatment plants annually spill

          5  billions of gallons of untreated waste into the

          6  water.  Of course, some of that would be raw sewage,

          7  and according to DEP, CSO's are considered to be the

          8  largest single source of pathogens in the New York

          9  City harbor region, which is why they've gotten so

         10  much of DEP's and the State's attention.  So, we

         11  look forward to hearing all of the things that the

         12  Commissioner has to tell us about this Consent

         13  Order, and the many other things they're doing

         14  regarding CSO's.

         15                 We'll also hear testimony on Intro.

         16  162, and as I mentioned before, and my colleague

         17  will speak further on it, the bill seeks to mitigate

         18  the burden of storm water runoff on the City's

         19  combined sewer system by making it easier to dispose

         20  of storm water on site.  So, we'll be hearing about

         21  that as well.

         22                 So, the Committee has held numerous

         23  hearings on the issue of protecting and improving

         24  the quality of our City's water bodies and will

         25  continue to be a forum to talk on this important
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          2  topic.  The Committee has, in the past, worked

          3  closely with DEP and I'm confident and that this

          4  productive relationship will continue in the future.

          5                 Once again, I'd like to thank

          6  Commissioner Ward for attending today's hearing.

          7  It's a pleasure to have you here. I'd like to take

          8  this opportunity to acknowledge the great service

          9  that you and your staff are providing to the

         10  citizens of New York, and let me also recognize,

         11  before I call upon the Commissioner to testify,

         12  we're joined by Council Members Lopez and Jennings

         13  and Council Member McMahon, who is wearing the exact

         14  same tie as I am.  So you can, it's a, yours is a

         15  Brooks Brothers right Mike? Just like mine, okay,

         16  you got it here?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  No, it's

         18  bargain basement.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, Okay, so

         20  is mine. Okay.  I also wish to thank the staff that

         21  made this hearing possible, Donna De Costanzo and

         22  Richard Colon from the Environmental Protection

         23  Committee Staff.  David will make mention of the

         24  staff for the Waterfronts Committee.  I'd also like

         25  to thank my own staff, Peter Washburn and Brittney
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          2  Marriotti (phonetic) for all their great efforts,

          3  and Mark Lanigan (phonetic) and Charlie Sturcken

          4  from DEP, and as always, Chris Manning, who does

          5  such a good job for the Mayor's Office.

          6                 So, without further adieu, I'd like

          7  to -- I'd like to also recognize Dominic Recchia,

          8  who has joined us and I also wish to thank, in a

          9  special way, Council Member Yassky for bringing the

         10  CSO issue into sharp focus and all of his great work

         11  on all of the issues that affect our waterfronts and

         12  for the bill that he has before us today, and I'd

         13  like to call upon him to make a statement.

         14  Councilman Yassky.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you Chair

         16  Gennaro.  I will, I want to get very promptly to the

         17  Commissioner's testimony, so I'll save my, the bulk

         18  of my thoughts for our questions and dialogue.  I

         19  just want to say at the outset, I would join the

         20  Chairman in his admiration for the dedication and

         21  the work of the Commissioner and the staff at DEP.

         22  In my quite of bit of dealings with your agency, I

         23  have found nothing but the highest level of

         24  professionalism.  I say that at the outset because I

         25  do have quite a bit to say today about the CSO issue
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          2  that's critical of the performance of the City over

          3  the last decade, well before, of course, you were

          4  tenure here Commissioner, as Commissioner.  So, but,

          5  I do want to be clear, I have nothing but respect

          6  for the way DEP has, operates under your leadership.

          7                 I do though think, that we must

          8  address the fact that the City has failed to address

          9  the CSO problem that was brought to its attention,

         10  or that it admitted was such a problem 12 years ago

         11  now.  To me, the goal of the hearing today, is to

         12  just figure out whether and for the Council to

         13  perform oversight, I take it that you're going to be

         14  here saying, well, the revised Consent Order is an

         15  improvement and a step forward.

         16                 That, I think, is the question before

         17  us. Because, when the City says, we have a problem,

         18  we need to address it, here's what we're going to do

         19  to do it, and then 14 years later, it hasn't done

         20  it, I think that that, you know, the citizens are

         21  owed an explanation why not and why this is a better

         22  course.  So, to me, that's the topic.  But, again, I

         23  thank you very much for your participation.  I will,

         24  yes, at your suggestion, of course want to recognize

         25  Christian Hilton (phonetic), who is with McLaughlin,
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          2  the staff of the Waterfronts Committee for their

          3  excellent work.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.  I

          5  have one more very special recognition to make and

          6  that we're joined by Council Member Vallone's

          7  daughter, Caroline, where is Caroline? Hi Caroline,

          8  and I move that Caroline be given all the privileges

          9  of the floor, how about that?  Okay.  Thank you.

         10  So, Commissioner, without further adieu, we would

         11  thank you once again, as I said, for being here, and

         12  we look forward to your good testimony and I'll call

         13  upon Donna De Costanzo to administer the oath to you

         14  and anyone else who may testify.  Commissioner Ward.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  In the

         16  testimony that you are about to give, do you swear

         17  or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and

         18  nothing but the truth?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I so affirm.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Thank you very

         23  much.  I appreciate the kind introductions from both

         24  leaders.  Today is a day, obviously, with the amount

         25  of rain we have, that prompts the question of what
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          2  is the status of the City's CSO system and how well

          3  does it adequately address both harbor and local

          4  water quality standards.  I appreciate the

          5  opportunity to come here today to talk about what is

          6  a fairly complicated issue, both environmentally,

          7  scientifically, financially and from a City land use

          8  perspective in terms of the necessary infrastructure

          9  required to address CSO issues.

         10                 So, with that I'd like to begin the

         11  testimony.  I am joined by Jim Muller, who is the

         12  Director of the City's policy planning effort at the

         13  Department and BEE and if there are technical

         14  questions, in many cases, I will refer to the expert

         15  who is here with me.  But, let me get started, as

         16  it's a busy day.

         17                 Just by way of background, New York

         18  City waste water infrastructure consists of 14 water

         19  pollution control plants, over 90 pumping stations,

         20  and the majority of sewers are combined, and this is

         21  the important part of today, for both sanitary and

         22  storm water in the same pipe.  The New York City

         23  water infrastructure spans 6,000 miles of sewers and

         24  90 pump stations that distribute, on average, about

         25  1.2 billions gallons per day of sanitary flow to
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          2  these water pollution plants.

          3                 At these plants, the sanitary flow

          4  receives secondary treatment, about 85 percent

          5  removal of biochemical oxygen demand, BOD, and

          6  suspended solids, plus disinfection.  As you know,

          7  because I've testified on it before, in some

          8  instances, tertiary treatment for nitrogen removal.

          9  Approximately 60 percent of the sewer system is

         10  classified as a combined system, which I'm going to

         11  get into in more detail, and I'll also mention that

         12  the combined system is a historic part of sewer

         13  infrastructure throughout the Country.  I mean, it's

         14  not a unique form of sanitary or water distribution.

         15    It is the way older cities have built their

         16  networks.

         17                 As you can see, on the next slide,

         18  there are approximately 460 outfalls throughout the

         19  City, and I'm sure each one of them today, with the

         20  five and a half inches of rain that we received in

         21  two hours, are working quite extensively.

         22                 I won't go into great detail, because

         23  I think most people in the audience, as well the

         24  Council, are aware of what a combined sewer is.

         25  It's just, basically, during dry weather, the
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          2  separation between the two systems is maintained.

          3  However, on a day like today, where you have a

          4  significant storm surge, the water ends up

          5  overtaking the sewer part of the system in picking

          6  up the sanitary, and then that is discharged into

          7  local water bodies or the harbor.  That is the slide

          8  that you see here.

          9                 As I mentioned, about 772 communities

         10  in the United States have combined sewer systems

         11  serving about 40 million people.  DEP and the City

         12  is a part of a number of agencies working with

         13  Washington on this issue, and there's been a really

         14  significant amount of debate in Washington on what

         15  are the infrastructure costs associated with

         16  remedying or improving the CSO problem throughout

         17  the Country.  I think this is a question that the

         18  City faces, given Councilman Yassky's introduction

         19  here on how much changing a historic system would

         20  end costing us and what appropriate role, given

         21  Federal regulations, should the Federal Government

         22  play.

         23                 The Bush Administration, under

         24  Governor Whitman, when she was head of EPA, was

         25  arguing that the infrastructure bill for a CSO
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          2  solution was around seven to 12 billion dollars. The

          3  industry is estimating that, nationwide, for those

          4  772 communities, would be about $40 billion.  So,

          5  this is a very large infrastructure cost question

          6  balanced with long- term environmental needs.

          7                 When you think about CSO's in New

          8  York City, I think it's important that we begin to

          9  understand how the CSO's function, both on open

         10  waters and on secondary or contained tributaries,

         11  because the water quality, in terms of its

         12  environmental impact, functions differently

         13  depending on where the CSO is discharging.  The key

         14  characteristics mostly throughout the City, is that

         15  we have small watersheds, and that's an odd word to

         16  use for an urban environment, but we have small

         17  catchman areas, where the rain gets into the catch

         18  basin system and contributes to the CSO's.  But,

         19  they're discharging then -- while they're small,

         20  they're discharging into high dilution areas, the

         21  Hudson River, for example, the East River.

         22                 In this case, and I'm going to use

         23  some language that I hope that people don't hold me

         24  up on too much, but the impacts you wouldn't really

         25  call significant compared to the tributary issues
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          2  that I'll deal with later.  And, it makes sense. You

          3  have a small watershed and you have a quick dilution

          4  rate. The Hudson and the East River are incredible

          5  water bodies, pulling the discharge out into the

          6  harbor and there are obviously issues associated

          7  with that.

          8                 But, the nuisance conditions

          9  generally don't exist and water quality standards

         10  are met most of the time.  Because of that, we would

         11  argue that major controls are not needed.  Tanks and

         12  the other much more capitally intensive projects,

         13  from both the land use perspective and a cost

         14  perspective, really, we don't think are cost-

         15  effective.  But, we do believe, and I think this is

         16  what the record that Councilman Gennaro's referring

         17  to, is that best management practices really do need

         18  to be in place to improve the retention rate within

         19  the overall CSO systems.

         20                 On the other hand, and this is the

         21  important other hand for today, CSO impacts in

         22  confined tributaries are far more problematic.

         23  These are tributaries that are generally in large

         24  watersheds and have minimal dilution.  Because of

         25  that, you have a low dissolve oxygen rate, you have
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          2  higher coliform bacteria, you have, as you see in

          3  many of these, high floatable problems, which is a

          4  gracious way, I must say, of referring to trash

          5  within the City.

          6                 Today, being down in Lower Manhattan,

          7  when the system overloaded, all of the trash, which,

          8  unfortunately, New Yorkers throw into their catch

          9  basins, was quickly brought up on to the streets.

         10  So, floatables is another name for litter, when it

         11  ends up on our beaches.  Sedimentation occurs in

         12  these local water bodies and with that

         13  sedimentation, problems with odors.

         14                 In this case, we would agree that

         15  major controls are needed for certain locations.

         16  Clearly, we need to reduce discharges, but we need

         17  to restore and protect, protect those areas, and

         18  many of them represent important ecological

         19  resources for the City historically, but perhaps

         20  more importantly, going forward.  And this, again,

         21  we would argue is where a cost benefit approach is

         22  appropriate.

         23                 Having said that, there will be a

         24  theme within my testimony today, which will come

         25  back to the notion of what is a cost benefit ratio.
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          2  Because, we will acknowledge that 100 percent water

          3  quality standards will not be met 100 percent of the

          4  time.  There will be failures, even with an

          5  aggressive program for local water bodies primarily

          6  using the tank, the large holding tank approach.

          7                 But, if I could, I would also like to

          8  add that this is a not problem that the City has

          9  come to late.  The City, going all the way back to

         10  1959, conducted a City- wide study on CSO abatement,

         11  and it identified, at that time, 29 potential

         12  locations for CSO facilities.  Again, just like the

         13  Chairman said, particularly due to bathing issues

         14  was where those locations were identified.   '72 the

         15  Spring Creek CSO Retention Facility was completed.

         16  Again, this was one of the first ones built in the

         17  United States, and it had a handling capacity of

         18  about 18 million gallons and was draining off to the

         19  26th Ward Pollution Plant for treatment.

         20                 As was acknowledged, 1972, following

         21  the Cuyahoga River, I think, catching on fire in

         22  Cleveland, the Federal Focus passed the 72 Clean

         23  Water Act, and with that, brought the secondary

         24  treatment that I referenced in the beginning of my

         25  testimony, for all of the City's plants.  Because of
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          2  that, the amount of resources at that time that were

          3  required to bring the 14 plants up to secondary

          4  treatment, from a fiscal perspective, I will be, you

          5  know, candid, and say that the CSO abatement at that

          6  time did become a lower priority.

          7                 But, if you look at harbor- wide,

          8  where were the dollars to be spent for water

          9  quality?  The focus became in taking these plants up

         10  to secondary treatment.  I would add as a footnote

         11  to that, at that time, up to 1972, DEP operated its

         12  waste water treatment plants on a sort of Summer

         13  Winter diurnal cycle, so that in the Winter, in

         14  fact, we were not treating waste as aggressively

         15  would in the Summer.  With  '72, those type of

         16  practices ended as we implemented a system- wide

         17  secondary treatment.

         18                 1979, New York City initiated a 280

         19  area wide waste water management program.  It was

         20  completed.  It recommended that CSO abatement go

         21  forward, and recognition that we were facing the

         22  kind of water quality problems that the study had

         23  indicated.

         24                  '80, we began the actual program.

         25  In  '83, we began the facility planning after we'd
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          2  done the science of what were the water quality

          3  programs.  The critical date is that in 1983, DEC's

          4  SPDES permits for our water pollution control

          5  efforts were linked to actual CSO initiatives.  So,

          6  then, following those, from  '79 to  '83, DEP

          7  combined the water quality studies that we had done,

          8  the planning effort on where these facilities would

          9  go forward, and in  '85, we established the CSO

         10  program, which was looking to develop a CSO program

         11  for, throughout the entire City.  From that, the

         12  Flushing Bay and Paerdegat Basin Facility plans were

         13  completed in the late 1980's.  But, I need to be

         14  clear that each one of those plans recommended that

         15  CSO storage tanks be put in place at each location.

         16                 So, that brought us to the 1992 CSO

         17  Consent Order. As you can tell from the timing, it

         18  was executed during New York City's planning

         19  process, and prior to the 1994 EPA CSO Guidance. So,

         20  if you would just think of the sort of multiple

         21  moving parts that were going on here from a

         22  regulatory perspective and from an infrastructure

         23  perspective.  The City had started in  '85, we were

         24  moving forward aggressively with the program, we had

         25  done the water quality analysis, we'd done the
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          2  planning process, and we had initiated our CSO

          3  program, and the Federal Government, the EPA, was

          4  still, two years later, while we're in the middle of

          5  this 1972 Consent Order, the EPA comes in with their

          6  CSO Guidance, which required us to look at

          7  modifications in terms of where EPA was on what they

          8  thought was a plan.  So, in a way, I think if the

          9  City thinks back and if we all think back

         10  collectively, the CSO effort has really been an on-

         11  going work in progress, which is, in a sense,

         12  updating itself both from a science water quality

         13  perspective, a facility perspective, and a cost

         14  benefit ratio.

         15                 Because of the focus on the

         16  tributaries and the confined water bodies, Flushing

         17  Bay and Paerdegat Basins projects became part of

         18  that Consent Order.  Here, we knew we had two

         19  locations which were meeting that kind of cost

         20  benefit ratio paradigm of local water bodies, large

         21  water shed, some small water shed and significant

         22  environmental degradation.  So, those became part of

         23  the Consent Order, milestones that I can go in some

         24  detail, were set forth for the remaining six other

         25  area- wide facility plans included in the Order, and
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          2  design and construction schedules for each one of

          3  those six were set forth within the Order.  I won't

          4  go through them now.  If there are Council people

          5  who want to ask me specific questions about each

          6  one, I'll do that, but the dates are fairly

          7  comprehensive.

          8                 So, the  '92 Order made clear that

          9  Flushing and Paerdegat had to go forward.  It made

         10  clear that there were six other tanks that needed to

         11  go through the process for completion. But, it also

         12  envisioned that there would be two tracks identified

         13  for implementing other parts of local water body

         14  improvements. For example, it identified interim

         15  floatable control measures. The track one focus was

         16  addressing dissolved oxygen and coliform standards

         17  compliant through to the CSO's.  It set a milestone

         18  schedule based on presumed tank program, and a

         19  generic schedule for the rest of the work, and

         20  again, it emphasized that eight storage tanks be

         21  built over time.

         22                 Track two was the floatable controls,

         23  setable solids control and use impairments for our

         24  systems needed to be addressed.  I've testified on

         25  the Budget Hearings of where we are with the interim
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          2  floatable programs.  You see our vessels out on the

          3  local water bodies, with the open water skimmer

          4  vessels.  We do booming and skimming in local areas.

          5    We had a demonstration project out in Queens for a

          6  vortex separator.  Candidly, I'm not sure that the

          7  vortex separator met the kind of level of

          8  performance that we would like, but we're continuing

          9  to look at that.  Perhaps, most importantly, as

         10  today represented, we looked at catch basin

         11  inventory in terms of how we could reduce through

         12  hooding in our catch basins of trash getting out

         13  into the local system.

         14                 Having said all that, local water

         15  body quality in New York City has just improved, I

         16  think the word dramatically, in some ways,

         17  underestimates what it was like.  As you can see in

         18  the slide behind me, in 1970, the amount of

         19  dissolved oxygen shown in red and orange was

         20  prevalent throughout the harbor.  In fact, it was

         21  just off the Rockaways, where tidal flow probably,

         22  in all likelihood, gave us a dissolved oxygen level

         23  that is shown in blue here.  By the year 2000,

         24  essentially, the entire harbor, except for some of

         25  the -- and then some of the Upper East River and
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          2  Hudson Rivers were in orange.  So, the above, these

          3  slides really illustrate the improvements to our

          4  local water bodies.

          5                 The thing that I would emphasize

          6  here, again, is that during this process, from  '70

          7  to 2000, I'm not trying to argue that this was the

          8  CSO effort.  This was, as I mentioned, while we were

          9  upgrading our primary treatment plants to secondary

         10  treatment as well.  So, you need to, we need to

         11  understand -- excuse me, the way a CSO program works

         12  in concert with a waste water treatment facility.

         13                 But, I'd also reference the fact that

         14  during this time period, the City's funding for

         15  these programs, 75 percent of the money came from

         16  Federal resources and 12 and a half came from the

         17  State, with the City funding only 12 and a half

         18  percent. Unfortunately, during the Reagan years,

         19  when we went to the revolving loan fund and some

         20  clever budgeteering at that time, the City receives

         21  essentially little or no Federal support for our

         22  waster water treatment facilities, as we had before.

         23    The revolving loan fund presents some financing

         24  opportunities, but not nearly the kind of financial

         25  support that we may need.
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          2                 The coliform bacteria improvements

          3  are even more dramatic, as this slide can show you.

          4  Again, similarly, and in large measure, has to do

          5  with CSO's plus waste water treatment. At the same

          6  time, there've been regulatory initiatives

          7  throughout the Country since the  '92 Order, and

          8  that includes EPA's National CSO Program in  '94,

          9  the Wet Weather Quality Act of 2000, this was passed

         10  by Congress in 2000 and codifies EPA's Control

         11  Policy Program, authorizes, I said, $1.5 billion in

         12  CSO grants, like many things, it authorized it, it

         13  never appropriated it.  So, there was no funding

         14  coming to the City from that authorization, and

         15  currently propose SPDES Permits required development

         16  of a long- term control plan for CSO abatement, and

         17  that was set forth in the Water Quality Act.

         18                 EPA released guidance on coordinating

         19  CSO planning in 2001.  So, while DEP, as I've said,

         20  does have a CSO program, the long- term program does

         21  need to be developed because the  '92 Consent Order

         22  and the SPDES Permit do not completely fulfill the

         23  requirement of a CSO control policy.

         24                 So, where does that leave us today?

         25  And I'm sorry if I've gone through that somewhat
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          2  quickly, just as Councilman Yassky asked, why did

          3  the City not continue and implement the CSO Order

          4  that we had before?  I guess there are a variety of

          5  reasons and the first one is a difficult one that

          6  every New York City project probably faces, and I

          7  don't want to make it seem like it's an easy excuse,

          8  but truly the main reason why the CSO projects

          9  contained in the  '92 Order are behind schedule is

         10  due to siting.

         11                 Due to site specific nature of CSO's,

         12  the available sites that are near outfalls targeted

         13  for abatement are limited and are very difficult to

         14  obtain.  The sites for Flushing Creek and Paerdegat

         15  Basin storage tank were successfully obtained

         16  through negotiation and concessions to the local

         17  community and New York City parks.  However, other

         18  sites have proven far more difficult in areas such

         19  as Newtown Creek, Fresh Creek in Brooklyn, or

         20  Westchester Creek and even the Hutchinson River Park

         21  River in the Bronx, where relocation of businesses

         22  and recreational facilities, as well as traffic

         23  impacts and traffic and commercial interests, have

         24  really delayed DEP's ability to secure those sites

         25  for construction of these large tanks.
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          2                 Having said that, DEP is still

          3  actively attempting to acquire all the needed sites

          4  that we had in the original Consent Order, and as a

          5  matter of fact, City Planning is scheduled to review

          6  our ULURP application for Westchester Creek today.

          7                 The other factor that I will come

          8  back to in the end, is that DEP does operate within

          9  a somewhat constrained fiscal environment.  Although

         10  we are not a tax levy agency, balancing the capital

         11  plan, vis- a- vie impacts on local rate payors and

         12  competing water quality or water supply is always

         13  something that runs through DEP's capital planning

         14  process.  As demonstrated in my previous slides,

         15  harbor water quality has really been improving in

         16  this time for a variety of reasons, and a bunch of

         17  other projects that DEP is actively engaged in.

         18                 I mentioned one, in particular, but

         19  increasing wet weather treatment in our water

         20  control plants, and basically capturing through

         21  interceptors even more volume that can then be

         22  treated.  The figure from 17 percent up to 72, and I

         23  actually, Chairman, I think we're even higher now.

         24  I think we're at around 78 percent, is a CSO- like

         25  initiative, although it's not an actual CSO program.
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          2                 I mentioned catch basin

          3  modifications.  We have automated our sewer system

          4  for regulators to minimize flows in sensitive water

          5  bodies.  So, while site acquisition for storage

          6  facilities continues, we continue to look at them,

          7  we need to begin to look at other solutions as well,

          8  because I'm not sure, given the complexity of those

          9  siting issues, that can, in fact, be a CSO solution.

         10                 So, with all of that, the elements

         11  that I'd like to go through now are the renegotiated

         12  Consent Order.  You are right, today, the public

         13  notification for comment was in the local papers.

         14  First off, it addresses non- compliance with the

         15  1992 Consent Order and clarifies goals and

         16  processes.  DEP will be in compliance with State law

         17  and CSO Control Policy.  It will settle some past

         18  violations that we've had.  We will pay significant

         19  fines, and it adds a series of what we believe are

         20  innovative environmental benefits projects, which

         21  are cost effective and really deal and can deal with

         22  some of the local community issues from the confined

         23  tributaries.

         24                 It establishes new milestones for the

         25  planning process, and what it seeks to do is to
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          2  develop water body and watershed facility plans,

          3  followed by submissions of a long- term control

          4  plans, and an implementation of facility plans, and

          5  finally, a review and revision of water quality

          6  standards.

          7                 We believe that the concurrent work

          8  of waste water treatment, CSO, integrative work for

          9  other environmental protections, will in no way

         10  decrease the improving water quality of the local

         11  harbors, and with the innovative programs through

         12  the Environmental Benefit Programs, we think we will

         13  be addressing local community concerns as well.

         14  But, I will be candid and let you know that this new

         15  Consent Order has allowed DEP significant cost

         16  savings in terms of our current capital plan, by

         17  deferring some of the more costly tank projects,

         18  which I will talk about in a minute, which we

         19  believe are beginning to face the kind of knee of

         20  the curve problem with diminishing returns for ever

         21  higher costs.  Because of that, we think the Consent

         22  Order is a structured balance between those

         23  competing sets of priorities.

         24                 I won't go through this in tremendous

         25  detail, because you have it in your hand- out, but
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          2  as you can see on the left, you have the original

          3  Consent Order and you have the revised Consent

          4  Order.  I will go to the revised Consent Order. It

          5  will require us to construct the three tanks,

          6  Flushing Paerdegat and Alley Creek.  We will

          7  continue the tank planning effort for Newtown Creek,

          8  Hutchinson River and Westchester Creek. We have an

          9  aggressive floatable controls requirement under

         10  Bronx River and Gowanus and our Wet Weather capacity

         11  upgrades, which are so critical, will be adding 50

         12  mgd to the 26th Ward, 50 mgd to Jamaica, and 10 mgd

         13  to the Gowanus Pump Station.  We will continue with

         14  our regulator tide and throttling build out for the

         15  sewer system.

         16                 Two of the projects that I would just

         17  like to talk about quickly, and it's not just

         18  because Chairman Yassky's here, but the Gowanus

         19  Flushing Tunnel modernization and pump station

         20  reconstruction is obviously the type of project

         21  which is seeking to address local water body and

         22  community problems.  That project is going forward

         23  and we will be moving aggressively to modernize the

         24  Gowanus Flushing Tunnel.  It will, however -- and

         25  the reason why I'm bringing this up -- will require
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          2  the tunnel, the Flushing Tunnel to be shut off for

          3  nine months during Winter for construction starting

          4  in 2006.  That will bring us the kind of Flushing

          5  that we think will keep the BOD levels high and it

          6  will reduce sedimentation and will address the odor

          7  problem.

          8                 So, what the means is, that we won't

          9  have to go into that community, as we had to do in

         10  Paerdegat Basin, and potentially build a very large

         11  disruptive tank for handling that problem.  We

         12  believe because of it, we'll have increased

         13  reliability, which will require far less shut- downs

         14  for shorter period of times and then an upgrade of

         15  water quality classification will be possible.

         16  Bronx River, we have the same sort of approach,

         17  which we think can address water quality without

         18  having to build a large expensive, potentially

         19  disruptive tank.

         20                 The next slide shows how much we were

         21  spending in the original Consent Order and how much

         22  we are spending in the revised Consent Order, with a

         23  percentage of CSO discharge treated and the amount

         24  of untreated CSO's shown in billions of gallons per

         25  year.  So, while cumulative, DEP's current program
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          2  for CSO's control is more extensive than the

          3  original 1992 Order, and the benefits are greater, I

          4  will be candid and say they are spread out over a

          5  longer period of time.  What we attempted to do was

          6  strike a balance between spending a larger amount of

          7  dollars, knowing more about where the local water

          8  quality problems and committing to ensuring that the

          9  type of projects which can be cost- effective will

         10  get built.  But, they are taking place over a longer

         11  period of time.

         12                 So, where does that leave us with the

         13  work to be done?  As I have said, even with a more

         14  extensive program, it's not anticipated that water

         15  quality standards will be met at all times in the

         16  confined tributaries of New York Harbor.  Regulatory

         17  alternatives with the EPA and DEC are being pursued,

         18  our UAA, the Use Attainability Analysis, may

         19  redefine water uses and classifications for certain

         20  tributaries to bring New York City into compliance

         21  with the Clean Water Act.  There may be an

         22  opportunity to pursue upgrades and current

         23  classifications for select areas once the

         24  engineering controls are in place.

         25                 Significantly, from a regional
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          2  perspective, EPA, New York and New Jersey, have

          3  agreed to develop TMDL's, Total Maximum Daily Loads

          4  for the New York Harbor by 2006, for nutrients,

          5  toxins and pathogens.  These initiatives could

          6  result in additional potential mandates for DEP, but

          7  we've agreed to address those TMDL's and implement

          8  or set those TMDL's, so we know the goals that we

          9  are attempting to achieve.  Whether we'll be able to

         10  fund them all, at this point, is unclear.  We are

         11  continuing to monitor the process to push for cost-

         12  effective solutions.

         13                 DEP has provided comments with City

         14  Health, whose here today, regarding the promulgation

         15  of recreational use criteria for the pathogen

         16  indicator called enterococcus.  EPA has recently

         17  implemented this new criteria, working with

         18  Commissioner Frieden, his staff, we have been

         19  concerned while there may be a scientific basis for

         20  the new enterococcus standard, it might not be an

         21  adequate health base standard for New York City for

         22  beach closures, and we're working closely with both

         23  of them to ensure that sound science is what we are

         24  using from a health perspective for beach closures.

         25                 I think New York, ironically, for all
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          2  of the rain we had this Summer, did quite well in

          3  terms of beach closures.  I could give you more

          4  details, but we did not have the potential number of

          5  beach closures that we were forecasted to under the,

          6  the new criteria.

          7                 As I mentioned previously, though,

          8  many water quality improvements that have been seen

          9  within the harbor over the last 30 years have

         10  resulted from the Clean Water Act, were heavily

         11  subsidized through Federal and State funding.  This

         12  funding stream is no longer available, and as we

         13  move to controlling more marginal levels of

         14  pollution that have more localized impacts, the

         15  point of diminishing returns is quickly nearing.

         16                 This is the classic public policy

         17  knee of the curve.  Do you want to spend another $2

         18  billion to achieve two or three percent reduction?

         19  If you've gotten to  '95 for the dollars that you've

         20  spent, are there other ways that you can end up

         21  spending those resources for higher environmental

         22  benefits?  I am not saying that the decision has

         23  been reached.  Obviously, that we have decided that

         24  we have reached the knee of the curve, but it's a

         25  framework that we would ask the Council to
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          2  appreciate when we talk about where the long- term

          3  capital plan has been in deferral of some of these,

          4  these projects.

          5                 In closure, I would say that I think

          6  the City faces some very significant questions about

          7  water infrastructure and waste water treatment.

          8  Harbor- wide, we are doing better than we ever have

          9  before.  The quality of the water in our open water

         10  bodies is continuing to improve.  Local water

         11  bodies, however, are a major quality of life

         12  problem.  They're an ecological problem, as it

         13  potentially leads to deteriorations of wildlife and

         14  other species, and in a sense, the communities which

         15  historically have been burdened by often these local

         16  tributaries are the ones that have benefited the

         17  least from these larger harbor water quality

         18  initiatives.

         19                 We believe that the new Consent Order

         20  presents an appropriate framework where we are

         21  spending more money.  We are spending it, we

         22  believe, wisely, getting the largest bang for our

         23  buck.  We're moving forward with the three large

         24  tanks.  For anybody who's been out to Paerdegat

         25  Basin, building these tanks, that project cost about
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          2  $360 million, has, will, in the end, be about a

          3  seven year project, that is incredibly disruptive.

          4  We think the tanks should go forward, but we should

          5  continue to explore the siting of the locations of

          6  the remaining six.  But, they're innovative, cost-

          7  effective measures that we should continue to take,

          8  interceptor regulators, floatables, hoods on, catch

          9  basins, automated interceptors and regulators, and

         10  improve the overall system, basis of capturing storm

         11  sewer overflow and getting it into our waste water

         12  treatment plants to obviate the need of some very

         13  large, very expensive plants.

         14                 Having said all of that, siting of

         15  these large tanks remains a challenge, and we are

         16  continuing to pursue them absent local regulatory

         17  approval through either ULURP, acquisition

         18  condemnation, some of these sites will be difficult

         19  in order to secure a permanent location for large

         20  construction of the tank.

         21                 I look forward to working with the

         22  Council to continue to discuss and assess and, in

         23  some cases, debate the efficacies of the new Consent

         24  Order.  I think it is a statement on the City's part

         25  that we are not backing away from these goals, but
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          2  rather it is a balancing of short- term and long-

          3  term needs within a constrained fiscal environment.

          4                 We have been hearing, and the Federal

          5  Government has been discussing, a far more

          6  aggressive Federal CSO program. If that aggressive

          7  CSO program were to be put forward on a regulatory

          8  basis, it would be imperative that the City and the

          9  State move aggressively in Washington to secure

         10  Federal funding, or local City rate payers could

         11  face significant increase in their water and sewer

         12  rates.  Unfortunately, we are not receiving that

         13  money now, and if the burden were to be shifted to

         14  local municipalities, such as New York, it could be

         15  extremely costly.

         16                 So, with that, I will conclude my

         17  testimony.  I know that there were some questions.

         18  Rather than go through my particular remarks on

         19  Intro. 162, sponsored by Chairman Yassky, if people

         20  would like to ask specific questions, I'd be glad to

         21  address our response to that legislation or some of

         22  the questions that were forwarded earlier.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         24  Thank you Commissioner for your comprehensive

         25  testimony.  I also wish to thank the Health
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          2  Department for being in attendance.  I wish to

          3  recognize some Members who have joined us in the

          4  interim since the beginning of your testimony,

          5  Council Member Gioia, Council Member Koppell, who

          6  was here, Council Member Gonzalez, and Council

          7  Member Brewer.

          8                 Let me just, I'm so pleased that the

          9  Members have taken such an interest, certainly want

         10  to give them an opportunity to ask you some

         11  questions and interact with you. But, before I turn

         12  it over to Councilman Yassky to ask his questions

         13  and to other Members who've signed up for questions,

         14  let me just, you know, touch on a couple of items

         15  that were in your statement.  You indicated that the

         16  capture rate of, is up to 78 percent --

         17                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- No, no, I was

         18  actually just to be --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- I'm sorry?

         20                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- I was

         21  corrected by staff, I misspoke, and I did that

         22  affirming that I thought I was going to be right.

         23  By the time the program we completed, we should be

         24  at 75 percent.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I see.  But,
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          2  right now, what was, 13 years ago, we were capturing

          3  on the Order about 18 percent?

          4                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And, so now

          6  we're up about 72 --

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Correct --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Is that

          9  about right?

         10                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, and one

         12  thing that I, it's, you know, kind of a recurring

         13  theme for me when it comes to harbor water quality

         14  and dissolved oxygen, which is certainly a measure

         15  of the health of the water way and something that we

         16  all wish was higher.  This is the basis for doing

         17  the sewage treatment plant upgrades, the basis for a

         18  lot of the CSO work that's being done in order to

         19  create our water bodies more, have it be more

         20  healthy, as indicated by your slide that you put up

         21  about the amount of dissolved oxygen.

         22                 With regard to food waste disposers,

         23  certainly we've talked on previous occasions about

         24  what a large amount of food waste disposers would do

         25  with regard to our efforts to reduce the nitrogen
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          2  that goes into our water ways.  That's not the

          3  subject of this hearing, but with regard to the

          4  presence of undigested food material in the whole

          5  CSO system, the effluent has to go underground and

          6  the tank, and what impact would be, a large

          7  penetration of food waste disposers do to the

          8  ability of DEP to sort of process the sewage that

          9  comes from the underground tanks.

         10                 I'm just looking for this kind of,

         11  kind of a technical assessment of the impacts of

         12  food waste disposers on the whole CSO.  We know what

         13  it would do to the nitrogen issue, but with regard

         14  to CSO's.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Right.

         16  Basically, what you'd be facing is that you would

         17  have a significantly increased amount of organic

         18  material that would potentially be discharged into

         19  local water bodies when you had a CSO event.

         20  Moreover, you would have local, I guess, quality of

         21  life issues associated with all that organic

         22  material being down in the combined sewer system.

         23                 So, not only would you be facing

         24  issues of discharge into the local water bodies, and

         25  that's in addition to the organic loading at our

                                                            41

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND WATERFRONTS

          2  waste water treatment plants that we're very

          3  concerned about, you would also have organic

          4  material in the system throughout the City, and

          5  obviously, rodent issues and other health issues

          6  would be compounded with that process.

          7                 So, as you know, DEP opposes the use

          8  of waste water -- I mean, I'm sorry, of garbage

          9  grinders and garbage disposals, and the nitrogen

         10  issue, which you have spoken to, but also you would

         11  have significant amounts of organic material in the

         12  CSO that on a day like today, you would have

         13  discharged into local water bodies.  One of the

         14  things that I would just bring up in visiting the

         15  various parts of the City today, you can graphically

         16  see what happens when organic material is in the

         17  sewer system.  Unfortunately, far too many

         18  restaurants discharge commercial oils and waste down

         19  into --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         21                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- The sewer

         22  system.  I was in Lower Manhattan on West Broadway

         23  today, and the amount of cooking oils and fats has

         24  now put a slick over Broome Street, Grand, Wooster.

         25  So, again, like the garbage grinders, that organic
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          2  material on the CSO event would either be going into

          3  the water bodies or coming back up through the catch

          4  basins.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, and I

          6  think it was up until 1997, residents were not

          7  allowed to use garbage grinders or food waste

          8  disposers in combined areas of the City that were

          9  served by combined sewers --

         10                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Correct --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- And the

         12  reasons were for what you just --

         13                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Exactly --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Articulated.

         15    Okay. Thank you.  You mentioned the, all the work

         16  that's been done in recent decades about increasing

         17  the capacity of plants to full secondary treatment.

         18  How close are we to full secondary treatment City-

         19  wide?

         20                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  We are, right, 13

         21  of our 14 plants are at secondary treatment.

         22  Newtown Creek is going through the construction of

         23  secondary treatment.  We are, we are moving forward

         24  on our nitrogen program for tertiary treatment as

         25  well.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So, right now,

          3  the Newtown Creek has partial secondary treatment or

          4  what's the status of that?

          5                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Let me just ask

          6  Al Lopez, who's here with me.  Right, the

          7  statistics, let me just do it this way, the

          8  statistics are 85 percent standard, that I reference

          9  in my testimony and it's an activated sludge system.

         10  So, while we think it is providing, I would

         11  characterize adequate waste treatment, it could not

         12  be classified as a secondary system.  All of the

         13  other plants are operating on a secondary system.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  How long has it

         15  taken for you to work with the DEC to reach this

         16  proposed Consent Order? How long has that process

         17  been?

         18                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  We've been

         19  working actively with DEC since I became

         20  Commissioner, in all, you know, honesty, we were out

         21  of compliance with the earlier 1992 Order.  It was

         22  something that this Administration felt strongly

         23  needed to be resolved, and it wasn't doing the State

         24  or the City any good to be in a position of non-

         25  compliance.  So, as soon as we were able, we began a
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          2  negotiation to establish a new order.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Of the total

          4  capital budget, I know that, I guess last year, we

          5  spoke of, you know, 16.5 billion, you know, ten year

          6  capital plan.  How much of that capital plan would

          7  be, do you believe will have to be dedicated to the

          8  CSO issue?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  The, over the

         10  duration of the whole CSO program, which will go

         11  beyond --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- The ten year

         14  capital plan, and that was what I --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, it's

         16  really two questions.  How much of the 16.5 is going

         17  to go towards CSO? And, what is the total bill for

         18  the --

         19                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Within this

         20  ten-year period, it's about $550 million.  It's to

         21  be determined following the ten year process about

         22  will we be doing tanks at that locations or will we

         23  be doing other efforts.  But, as I want to make

         24  clear, the planning within this existing, this

         25  renegotiated Consent Order, is not, in any ways,
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          2  defer -- I'm sorry, it is deferring, but it is not

          3  saying we wouldn't go forward with that same

          4  planning effort.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Pardon?  I

          6  didn't --

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD: I didn't say

          8  that.  I didn't say that very well at all --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- We're spending

         11  $550 million on the CSO program now.  The Consent

         12  Order is requiring us, the revised Consent Order, is

         13  requiring us to continue to do the necessary

         14  planning and implementation work for the sites that

         15  were set forth in the original Consent Order.

         16  However, they have been deferred within their

         17  timeframe, and we are doing other water quality

         18  studies and assessments, as well as looking at other

         19  types of non- tank initiatives that might address

         20  local water body issues.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  One of the

         22  questions that I guess is certainly an issue for me,

         23  you know 60 percent of the City that's serviced by

         24  combined sewers, that means 40 percent of the City

         25  is serviced by dedicated sanitary sewers.  As a
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          2  result, all the storm waste would go right out to

          3  local water bodies and to, to what extent are we

          4  working with those discharges, and is that part of

          5  the overall sort of, you know, CSO kind of issue,

          6  even though --

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- It's

          9  technically not a CSO issue?

         10                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Right, exactly.

         11  I mean I would say that that really falls into the

         12  category of containment, falls into the category of

         13  our floatables program, our catch basin program and

         14  our automated regulators.  Because, again, those,

         15  while they are not technically a CSO issue, it

         16  allows us to reduce the amount of --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Storm water

         19  runoff that goes, which would then have to be

         20  captured at a large tank.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well,

         22  Commissioner, we do have a copy of the Consent

         23  Order.  It has been released to us, and certainly

         24  the Committee will focus on it and talk to some of

         25  our friends in the environmental community and the
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          2  advocates, and other stake holders.  We certainly

          3  will be talking with your staff about it over the

          4  next 30 days to see what, if any, pronouncements

          5  this Committee and this Council will have regarding

          6  this Consent Order.  Just one last question before I

          7  turn it over, it's, how many inches of rain today?

          8                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I, when I was

          9  down on Broadway, I heard that we got five and a

         10  half inches in less than three hours, which is about

         11  a month's worth of rainfall in a two and a half hour

         12  period.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And, certainly,

         14  something which would overwhelm any City, I

         15  understand that some of the subways are flooded out

         16  and it just shows how critical some of the routine

         17  operations, like making sure that the catch basins

         18  are clean, certainly gives us an opportunity to

         19  focus on those day- to- day maintenance issues, so

         20  that we don't, so when the rain comes, it has a --

         21                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  --

         22  Unfortunately, it's coming again tonight --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- It has a

         24  place to go-

         25                 COMMISSIONER WARD: I guess we're
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          2  expecting another heavy band of storms from

          3  hurricane --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, this

          5  Council may take action on that today.  So, we'll

          6  have to see how that works. So, I wish to recognize

          7  Council Member Yassky, who certainly has questions

          8  on Intro. 162, and I would like to recognize that

          9  we've also been joined by Councilman Bill DeBlasio.

         10  So, Councilman Yassky.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you, Chair

         12  Gennaro. Yes, it was, you're comment about the rain

         13  reminded me that just on Monday, the Mayor took

         14  credit, justifiably, for the very good weather at

         15  the West Indian Day Carnival.  But, I do not blame

         16  any politician for the rain.  I don't think that's

         17  appropriate.  I just want to be clear.

         18                 But, let me just put in context,

         19  today, heavy day, but how much in, how many gallons,

         20  roughly, of untreated sewage were released into New

         21  York Harbor, New York waterways today, would you

         22  estimate?

         23                 COMMISSIONER WARD:   I mean, I --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Because anybody

         25  in your staff can give --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- I mean, you

          3  really, you really couldn't.  For example, let me

          4  just go through how the systems function.  We did a,

          5  before I came here, Staten Island, the system really

          6  worked well.  We had little or no, essentially, we

          7  didn't have any problems with the system there.  The

          8  Bronx worked incredibly well.  We really didn't have

          9  any problems there.  North Brooklyn, we had some

         10  issues, primarily on the arterial highways.  The

         11  areas that we had problems today were in Southeast

         12  Queens and North Queens. Councilman Avella is well

         13  aware of the issues there.  Same with flooding in

         14  the Whitestone area --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I'm sorry, can I

         16  just, I want to make sure I understand, when you say

         17  no problems in Staten Island and the Bronx, you mean

         18  there was no combined sewer overflow --

         19                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  No, no, I guess

         20  what I'm saying, yeah, that the system handled the

         21  amount of rain that was coming --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Right, by

         23  releasing it into the --

         24                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Waterways.
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          2  So, --

          3                 COMMISSIONER WARD: I couldn't

          4  estimate today what the gallons would be --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: But it would be

          6  in the, in the millions of gallons of raw sewage was

          7  released today into New York waterways, isn't that

          8   --

          9                 COMMISSIONER WARD: That's probably

         10  true.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: That must be

         12  true.  I guess that's the question, and what, you

         13  know, how big a problem is that? And how can we

         14  reduce that? If we agree it's a problem, are the

         15  issues --

         16                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: And I want to be

         18  clear, I took your point.  Absolutely, it's one

         19  thing to release a millions gallons a year into the

         20  Hudson River, and another to release a million

         21  gallons into Jamaica Bay.  I understand that and one

         22  is a bigger problem than, the second ones a bigger

         23  problem than the first.  But, we, I take it from

         24  your testimony, that we're in agreement, as the

         25  City's been since 1992, we're pretty, well, when it
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          2  signed the Consent Order, that it's a problem of

          3  some magnitude.  Just to, again, to get the numbers,

          4  each year, this year, let's say, how many gallons of

          5  untreated sewage did we release?

          6                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.  If you go

          7  back to the slide here that Jim's just brought up,

          8  on an average year, I guess we're at around 32 --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Billion

         10  gallons --

         11                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Billions

         12  gallons.  Under the revised Consent Order, we would

         13  hopefully be down just over 27.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  You're going to

         15  bring it down to, okay, I'm glad you brought that

         16  slide up, because I wanted to ask about it.  When

         17  you, because at first I was confused when I saw that

         18  slide, I thought you were saying, oh my goodness,

         19  the revised Consent Order is better than the

         20  original Consent Order because it, you know, the

         21  yellow in that third chart, the yellow bar is

         22  shorter than the pink bar --

         23                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Right --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- But, what

         25  you're saying, if I get it, is that the revised
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          2  Consent Order will make some headway on the problem,

          3  will reduce the current level of emission from, you

          4  know, let's rough, over 32 billion to somewhere

          5  around 27 billion --

          6                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Right --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- But you're

          8  not saying that that's better than we would have

          9  done under the original Consent Order? And I guess

         10  that's my question.  Had we complied with, or were

         11  we today, you know, today to comply with the

         12  original Consent Order, what would that number be?

         13  My, if I get it, it wouldn't be 32, and it wouldn't

         14  be 27, it would be something less than that.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  No, I'm sorry.  I

         16  guess maybe I didn't say it in my testimony.  The

         17  column on the left, which is the original Consent

         18  Order, meant that under the original Consent Order,

         19  we would have been treating, at the end of it, 32

         20  billion gallons.  Or, there would be untreated 32

         21  billion gallons discharged.  Under the new Consent

         22  Order, we believe it will be 27 --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- So then how

         24  many --

         25                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- The difficult
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          2  reality is, is that we will be doing that better

          3  treatment --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Much later --

          5                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- At a much

          6  longer period of time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, then it's

          8  not -- so today, we're by, I mean 2004, roughly, or

          9  2003 if you know, whatever, how many billions of

         10  gallons are we releasing of untreated sewage?

         11                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I would say

         12  around 72 billion gallons.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Go ahead Jim.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Commissioner,

         16  Mr. Chairman and Commissioner, I just want to make a

         17  clarification that --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  It's not sewage,

         19  it's CSO --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:-- That I think,

         21  yes. So, when we talk about these numbers, these

         22  billions of gallons, this is billions of gallons of

         23  untreated CSO effluent, which is you know, rain

         24  water and other.  So, when we talk about sewage,

         25  ordinarily, we're talking about like a sanitary flow
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          2  from like a sanitary sewer, and this is --

          3                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  That's a good

          4  point --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And this would

          6  have a lot of components to it --

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It would have

          9  all of the storm --

         10                 COMMISSIONER WARD: I appreciate the

         11  clarification --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, so there's

         13  a --

         14                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- New Yorkers

         15  should be assured that the CSO volume is not raw

         16  sewage --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Right.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- In it's

         19  entirety --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: And it's about

         21  half of that.  It's roughly half, that's at least

         22  my, what I have in my head, is that fair to say?

         23                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  See, this is the

         24  tough thing. I can't, it depends on the storm, it

         25  depends on the storm and how much it is and --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay, but over a

          3  year-

          4                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Say it's about

          5  half.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: It's about, I

          7  don't want think I'm leading the, ask leading

          8  questions, I, is it about half?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WARD: No, that's fair --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  That's what I

         11  have in my head, is that?

         12                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I'm sorry, Jim

         13  Muller would go back and probably do a better job

         14  than I did in sort of clarifying volumes under

         15  existing conditions, previous Consent Order and the

         16  renegotiated Consent Order.

         17                 MR. MULLER:  Just real quick, thank

         18  you.  The original Consent Order --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We need you to

         20  state your name for the record.

         21                 MR. MULLER:  I'm sorry, Jim Muller,

         22  New York City DEP.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         24                 MR. MULLER:  The original 1992

         25  Consent Order was estimated to achieve about a 70
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          2  percent capture.  Currently, we're at 72 percent

          3  capture.  So, the original Order was untreated about

          4  32 billion gallons of CSO.  That would put us, right

          5  now, on an average year, at about 30 billion gallons

          6  of CSO.  So, we've come down off that 32.  This is

          7  comparing the two Consent Orders.  If you're asking

          8  about average years, we're at about 30 billion

          9  gallons.  So, it's not an apples to apples in terms

         10  of comparing this graph to what you said like this

         11  year. You follow me?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I didn't.  I

         13  just want, because you can't be saying that had we

         14  built the eight catch basins and done everything

         15  that was required in the  '92 Consent Order, we'd be

         16  at the same place we are today.  So, I'm not sure I

         17  did follow you.

         18                 MR. MULLER:  The eight catch basins.

         19  The current program is much more extensive, we are

         20  planning wet weather treatment expansions, 50 mgd at

         21  Jamaica, 50 mgd at 26 Ford.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, I get

         23  that.

         24                 MR. MULLER:  So, it's more extensive.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.  Let me
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          2  then, let's just focus on where we are today,

          3  actually, it's about 72 billion gallons total

          4  release, so half, somewhere around half of that is

          5  sewage, maybe that's around 36, 35 to 40 billion

          6  gallons of sewage?

          7                 MR. MULLER:  No, it's 30 billion

          8  gallons of CSO that's released on an average year.

          9  That's an estimate of our current average year.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Oh, okay.

         11                 MR. MULLER: The 72 --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: So then this --

         13                 MR. MULLER:  -- It's 72 percent

         14  capture, 30 billion gallons of untreated.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  You know, I'm

         16  sorry, and I hope the Chair and Committee Members

         17  will indulge me on the, to go into detail on these

         18  numbers, but I just think that they're kind of

         19  fundamental to get the basic context here.  So, this

         20  chart, where I have on page 16, but that one you've

         21  got up there, where it shows, you know, something

         22  called original Consent Order at 32 billion gallons

         23  of outflow of release.  That's on the ground fact

         24  how much we do, you know, today? Or that was some

         25  kind of projection from what the original would have
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          2  done?

          3                 MR. MULLER:  It was a projection.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, so the,

          5  but beyond the ground fact of what we're doing

          6  today, is around 72.  I just, going by what you said

          7  before.  Okay.

          8                 MR. MULLER:  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, I get you.

         10    And, the time table --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- 72 -- pardon

         12  me.  72 is, 72 release? 72 billion?

         13                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Capture.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Capture, fine.

         15  Okay.  I was solid, but then I got wobbly for a

         16  second there.  Okay, now I'm back.  Okay, I got it,

         17  72 percent capture.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Now, here's my,

         19  just simple question, so then how, okay, let me just

         20  make sure then that we all do get it.  Today, this

         21  year, 2004, roughly, how many billions of gallons of

         22  outflow from the system of combined sewer overflow

         23  release into the waterways will we experience?

         24                 MR. MULLER:  I'm not trying to be

         25  misleading.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay, no --

          3                 MR. MULLER:  In an average year, we

          4  get about 40 to 44 inches of rain, okay? At average

          5  intensities and average durations, not hurricanes,

          6  not nor'easters.  In an average year, we will

          7  experience, at our current treatment capacity, about

          8  30 billion gallons of untreated release in an

          9  average year.  Now, at the end of  '04, if we get 60

         10  inches of rain, it's likely that it will be more

         11  than 30 billion gallons. I don't know what the rain

         12   --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  All right. You

         14  know, as anybody who's been watching the news, okay,

         15  I got you, But, you're right, let's talk averages.

         16  So, then this chart, where it says the original

         17  Consent Order, 32 billion, what you really mean

         18  there is that's where we are today, is somewhere

         19  around 32 billion gallons of release.  Not that

         20  that's what we would, where we would be had we lived

         21  up to the promises the City made in  '92.  But,

         22  that's where, that's not what you're saying.  You're

         23  saying this is where we are today.

         24                 MR. MULLER:  That's a projection from

         25  the  '92 Order.  The  '92 Order was much less
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          2  expensive.  It just had those eight tanks.  We're

          3  doing a much greater infrastructure program today,

          4  ten, 12 years later, with treatment plan expansion,

          5  sewer system enhancements --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  All right, time

          7  out.  If, in an average year, we release somewhere

          8  around 30 billion gallons of untreated outflow, it

          9  cannot be the case that had we built the eight

         10  tanks, we'd be releasing 32 billion gallons of

         11  untreated outflow, right?

         12                 MR. MULLER:  I agree.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  So, what is this

         14  number here supposed to be --

         15                 MR. MULLER: This number --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- In this chart

         17   --

         18                 MR. MULLER:  -- Is just the 1992

         19  Order.  It does not take into account, the number,

         20  the revised Consent Order --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay, it's a

         22  fictional, I get it now.  This number here --

         23                 MR. MULLER: It's a projection --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: So, I guess, you

         25  know, Commissioner, your, and I really meant it when
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          2  I said that there's been nobody that I've dealt with

          3  in government in my two and half years in this job

          4  whom I more respect than you and your team.  So,

          5  this obviously is not the right numbers.  Not a

          6  meaningful comparison to say, well, whatever

          7  somebody thought, projections they made in  '92

          8  compared to today.  The meaningful numbers are, what

          9  do we release today?  What would they get down to if

         10  we did what we said we would do in  '92, compared to

         11  what would we get down to under the Consent Order

         12  that you are proposing today?  Am I right, that

         13  that's the meaningful?

         14                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  You're right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  You don't have

         16  those numbers handy, do you?

         17                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  No, but  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Okay --

         19                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Let me just

         20  make clear here, the reason why the confusion came

         21  about is because the amount of work that we are

         22  doing, that we have done since the '92 Consent Order

         23  is, in effect, bringing us to the levels that the

         24   '92 Consent Order, when you were only calculating

         25  it on the basis of the tanks would have gotten us
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          2  to.  What we're now saying is, we're moving forward

          3  with that effort, added with the potential effort of

          4  the tanks.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.  I get

          6  that argument.  That argument is, we didn't do what

          7  the  '92 Order said, but we did other stuff and

          8  we've done pretty well, and so, you know we should

          9  look back and be happy --

         10                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- No --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- No, I don't

         12  mean to, I didn't mean that as a caricature.  I

         13  really meant that in a serious way.  We should look

         14  back and say, we're in an okay place, we're going to

         15  get to a better place, but we're in an okay place.

         16  And here's the question though, I think that's

         17  important to figure out because there's a way of

         18  looking at it, which is that the, you know, the City

         19  Administration that was here from '92 or  '93, until

         20  you took your job as Commissioner, didn't do what it

         21  was supposed to do, left us with a huge bill to pay,

         22  and, that we still have to do, on top of this, you

         23  know $2 million fine.

         24                 I guess, that's what I'm trying to

         25  figure out, is if that's really a fair way to look
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          2  at it.  And, if it is, we don't want to make that

          3  same mistake again, right?  I mean, it wouldn't be

          4  right or fair to the citizens to say that, you know,

          5  we're just going to leave this until Jim Gennaro's

          6  Mayor or Peter Vallone's Mayor, or whoever, down,

          7  ten years down the road.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I think that is a

          9  fair summary.  I think in defense of the previous

         10  Administration, there is and always has been the

         11  cost constraints of DEP being able to do,

         12  financially, what a regulator has asked us to do.

         13  But, I have to come back to, there is nothing that

         14  more slowed the City's CSO program than the

         15  difficult siting issue.  In some respects, it wasn't

         16  the financial constraints, it was the difficulty in

         17  securing the size and location of these sites.  But

         18  that's all I'll say on that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.  I don't

         20  want to take, you have an extraordinarily important

         21  job to do and I do not want to take more of your

         22  time than would be appropriate. Let me just go

         23  through a couple of things.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.  I have all

         25  the time in the world.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Because on this

          3  point that you're making about the knee of the

          4  curve, or, all right, the point where it's

          5  diminishing return, so it's not, you don't get the

          6  bang for the buck?

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Which is, I have

          9  it that chart's on page 18, oh there it is, that

         10  chart.  This -- I just want to make sure if I'm

         11  reading it right -- on the bottom, you have this

         12  cumulative cost and it goes from, you know, zero to

         13  then five billion, ten billion, to 40 billion, and

         14  we are at what point on this curve?

         15                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  We're at a, see

         16  the dots? Which is the statistical distribution of

         17  compliance with those two standards.  So, we're at

         18  about the $30 billion range, because the dots is

         19  where we are currently performing, taken from sample

         20  stations around the harbor.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  But we haven't

         22  spent $30 billion --

         23                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- We have --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- We have spent

         25  $30 billion cumulatively -- I see your point is --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Since the

          3  early, you know, thirties, in our waste water

          4  plants.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Right, I see,

          6  your -- this is not on CSO, I was confused --

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD: No, I'm sorry --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: This is on --

          9                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Total waste

         10  water treatment.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Total waste

         12  water treatment.  Okay.  So, this is, this is an

         13  argument, this is a much broader argument you're

         14  making at this point, than the CSO one.  You're

         15  saying it's not clear how much more bang for the

         16  buck there is on water quality period, in terms of

         17  waste water treatment, in terms of, you know, the

         18  sewage treatment plants and CSO combined.  I see.

         19  Alright.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Actually, can I

         21  just clarify that a little bit?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Because that is

         24  part of the argument, but really the other part of

         25  the argument is that if you were to spend
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          2  significant amounts of resources to capture the one

          3  or two percent differential on that, could

          4  potentially be very costly.  On the other hand, if

          5  what we're facing is ecological problems in confined

          6  tributaries or other water bodies, the argument very

          7  well could be that we would be better to spend our

          8  resources on targeted programs for ecological

          9  restoration than it would be to spend large amounts

         10  of money to achieve a small single percentage change

         11  in harbor water quality.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.  All

         13  right, I get that.  That's very plausible.  Because

         14  you said, you just came back to what I said a minute

         15  ago about are you, are we kind of deferring this for

         16  some later set of leaders to worry about. The

         17  handout here, your testimony, I think, says that now

         18  we're going to be in compliance with the Clean Water

         19  Act? Or under this Consent Order, is that even with

         20  respect to the 2000 amendments? If I understand it,

         21  in 2000, Congress then required, you know, cities

         22  like us to have a CSO plan.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I think I

         24  mentioned it a couple of times in my testimony.  I

         25  can say that we will be in compliance, but there is
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          2  concurrently the UAA assessment of local water body

          3  standards, which is the moving target on where we

          4  are within that regulatory framework.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, even

          6  putting that aside?

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  On, am I right

          9  that in 2000, Congress required cities like us to

         10  have a CSO reduction plan, and is it the City's

         11  position, your position, that then this proposed,

         12  revised Consent Order complies with that?

         13                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Absolutely.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.  In terms

         15  of the moving target you said a minute ago, you're

         16  saying, you believe that we're going to hit the

         17  water quality levels, but that, you know, there's a

         18  limit to how certain you can be on that.  Is that

         19  basically --

         20                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  What I'm

         21  referring to is that there's, between the TMDL and

         22  the UAA's, there will be continuing Federal

         23  assessment of what are the appropriate standards.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.  My last

         25  question is, am I right?  I don't think it's in your
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          2  testimony, but, at least our staff here, from

          3  looking at the consent decree, and I'll be totally

          4  candid -- I appreciate your candor -- I did not,

          5  have not been able to read yet the revised consent

          6  decree provided to us, but I will.  But, they tell

          7  me that it includes a $2 million fine? --

          8                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Correct --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- On the City?

         10  What was the maximum?  Is that, did we dodge a big

         11  bullet, was that a lot of money, what's, what's the

         12  maximum we could --

         13                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- $2 million is

         14  always a lot of money, but it could have been a hell

         15  of a lot higher.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Is there a --

         17  I'm ignorant, was there a maximum?

         18                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  There's not a

         19  maximum, but it could have been significantly higher

         20  because it's a daily fine. It could have been, you

         21  know, in the $20 to $30 million range.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.  In terms

         23  of beach closings, did I understand you to say that

         24  there are new Federal standards --

         25                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Correct --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- For bacteria

          3  that could require significantly more beach closing

          4  days than we've experienced over the last few years?

          5                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  But we're not

          7  sure whether they're, they may be too rigorous, the

          8  new standards? --

          9                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Yes, there --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- It's sounding

         11  like the Bush Administration, but may be.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WARD: There is a certain

         13  irony here, actually.  Due to science and

         14  technology, the ability to test for indicators has

         15  gotten more and more precise, and we've moved from a

         16  coliform standard to a enterococci standard.  With

         17  that, comes potentially greater amount of beach

         18  closures due to a more strict standard.

         19                 We've been working, as I said, with

         20  Commissioner Frieden and the Department of Health to

         21  discuss with EPA how they calculate those standards,

         22  whether it's on a rolling average, as well as a

         23  single numerical standard requiring beach closures,

         24  and when those sampling periods would take place.

         25                 The fact is, that under this new
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          2  standard, given certain whether patterns that we

          3  have previously seen in New York City, you could see

          4  greater beach closures than normal, particularly in

          5  beaches which are, in confined water bodies, such as

          6  the private beaches and Orchard Beach up in the

          7  Bronx.  But, you also can see them in the Coney

          8  Island area because of the way the tidal flows move.

          9    This was something that the Mayor communicated

         10  directly to EPA Administrator Leavitt about.  I

         11  think with the amount of rain we had, we were very

         12  lucky, we didn't have greater beach closures than we

         13  did.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well, thank you,

         15  Commissioner, thank you very much.  All I would ask

         16  is that you would, at some point, provide to the

         17  Committees --

         18                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- The numbers --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Those

         20  numbers, because I really do think -- I appreciate

         21  your point about cost benefit analysis, you said the

         22  Council should adopt that framework.  I tell you I

         23  do, absolutely.  I think, I submit to you, it's

         24  impossible, really to think about it, without

         25  knowing what the, where we are today, what the
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          2  benefit would be if we stuck with the original

          3  program, and what, compared to what the benefit is

          4  under the revised program  That allows you to think

          5  cost benefittly (sic).  So, I thank you for those

          6  numbers.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you

          9  Council Member Yassky.  We've been joined by Council

         10  Member Gentile, and Council Member Vallone has

         11  questions. Council Member Vallone.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you.

         13  Thank you both Council Member Gennaro and Yassky for

         14  having this important hearing to deal with this,

         15  frankly, unacceptable situation.  You mentioned

         16  beaches, Council Member Yassky.  I'm a former beach

         17  life guard, locally, and when it rains, the amount

         18  of sewage and human waste in the water gets measured

         19  to see if we can swim in it.  That sounds like a

         20  third- world country.  It doesn't sound like the

         21  greatest City on Earth.

         22                 I know, Commissioner, you feel as we

         23  do, and you're working on this.  But, it's taking a

         24  long, long time, and as the Council Member said, we

         25  don't want to be here ten years from now, with the
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          2  next Commissioner, talking to the next Chair, and

          3  saying we paid a fine with tax payer money and we've

          4  deferred this for another ten years.

          5                 Now, I looked through your testimony,

          6  and I don't see an end date.  I see certain costs

          7  have been deferred past the ten year period, and you

          8  talked about six tanks remaining, you're exploring

          9  sites, you're exploring options, you're exploring

         10  costs.  You didn't sound too hopeful.  When do we

         11  see this problem rectified?

         12                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Well, again,

         13  there is, I can't give you a specific date that

         14  says, this is when the CSO program will be

         15  finalized.  What I can tell you is that within the

         16  framework of the Consent Order, the realization of

         17  meaningful milestones and infrastructure

         18  improvements will be required.  The difficult

         19  framework within this Consent Order is what is the

         20  best way to do that.

         21                 Going back to Councilman Yassky's

         22  point, the harbor, as a whole, is functioning very

         23  well, and the levels of water quality that we have

         24  is excellent.  Unfortunately, some local water

         25  bodies are not.  Should we continue to strive to get
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          2  harbor water quality benefits, or should we have

          3  more focused efforts on local water body efforts?

          4  That is the framework that the CSO Consent Order is

          5  working on.

          6                 So, you are absolutely correct

          7  Councilman, there is not a specific end date when

          8  this would be done, because there is not a specific

          9  end date goal that says the problem will have then

         10  be solved.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well, are

         12  these six tanks, they're a large part of solving

         13  this problem?

         14                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Pardon me?  I'm

         15  sorry.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  The six

         17  tanks, they're a large part of solving this problem,

         18  I would assume?  And, again, I'm no expert --

         19                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Yes --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- In these

         21  situations --

         22                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- There, the

         23  three tanks that are being built and specific dates

         24  for the other three tanks that I reference, there

         25  are specific milestones and dates for those. But, in
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          2  terms of what will be the overall program and when

          3  it will be entirely completed is, in fact, open-

          4  ended.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  The

          6  remaining three, what are dates for their targeted

          7  completion?

          8                 MR. MULLER:  The tanks will be

          9  staggered in time. We'll begin phase one within this

         10  ten year plan.  It will be about $100 million

         11  between the three tanks that will be spent on design

         12  and construction.  So, phase one would be complete

         13  within the next ten years, the second phase, which

         14  is when the tanks would completed, will be, I

         15  believe, they begin in around 2014, 2015 and finish

         16  in 2022.  Those exacts dates are in the Order and if

         17  you have copies of it, you'll see that, and I think

         18  it's one of the appendices, I want to say Appendix

         19  A.  You'll see those specific dates.  So, it's a

         20  staggered approach.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Are those

         22  only for the first three tanks?

         23                 MR. MULLER:  Those are for the last

         24  three tanks. The first three tanks will come on line

         25  within this decade, fully complete.  That's
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          2  Paerdegat -- Flushing Bay will be complete by the

          3  end of 2005.  Paerdegat will be by the end of this

          4  decade and Alley Creek will be by about 2007, 2008.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay.  I did

          6  not see that in the Order, thanks for pointing that

          7  out.  I have many more, but unfortunately, I have to

          8  go to another meeting, so, thank you both.  I'm sure

          9  we'll be --

         10                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Thank you --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- Working

         12  with you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you

         14  Council Member Vallone.  Council Member Brewer.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         16  very much. Thanks Chris.  The question I have is on

         17  development.  When you, we have lots of development

         18  going on in this City.  Obviously, the ones that I

         19  am most familiar with are the Time Warner or some of

         20  the, the Mayflower Hotel coming down, and a big

         21  building going up on the West Side, as examples.

         22  How do they, working with the Buildings Department,

         23  is there any effort, or is it worth any effort to

         24  think about, do they provide any of the solutions,

         25  or just problems, or none of the above? Development

                                                            76

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND WATERFRONTS

          2  across the City.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.  One of the

          4  things Councilman that, had been come up and

          5  discussed was, what is the capacity of the waste

          6  water treatment plant on the West Side, North River

          7   --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  --  North River,

         10  due to the conservation programs that have been

         11  implemented, has an enormous amount of excess

         12  capacity.  So, we are not, in terms of development

         13  of treatment, we are not constrained by North

         14  River's ability to treat waste.  It has a capacity

         15  of about additional 20 million gallons.

         16                 The question that you raise is a good

         17  one and it goes somewhat to Councilman Yassky's

         18  bill, which is, how can we think of other creative

         19  ways to address storm water runoff besides very

         20  large expensive tanks --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WARD: We are now seeing

         23  more and more things like green roofs, which is an

         24  important strategy.  If you look at the recent DEP

         25  water rate, we have implemented a program for gray
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          2  and black water toilet systems to reduce capacity,

          3  storm water pilot programs and storm water capture,

          4  is something that DEP is very concerned about, and

          5  looking at a series of pilot programs.

          6                 For example, on the West Side

          7  Highway, essentially functions as a large cistern

          8  when it rains, funneling all that water down through

          9  some fairly significant drains and drops it in

         10  Riverside Park, and then it goes directly into the

         11  Hudson River. We're exploring the development of

         12  catchman and filter systems for irrigation in

         13  Riverside Park.

         14                 Similarly, development in and around

         15  Randall's Island, where the Triborough Bridge toll

         16  booths are, is a huge water catchman area where you

         17  can capture that water, treat it and use it for

         18  irrigation.  So, DEP believes that there are a

         19  variety of ways that we can reduce storm water

         20  besides simple large scale tanks.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So that means

         22  that new buildings coming on line will have to

         23  adhere to some of these or they're still pilots?

         24                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  They're still

         25  pilots.  The program for a rate reduction for gray

                                                            78

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND WATERFRONTS

          2  or black water systems is now an approved rate for,

          3  within the City's water rates.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  So,

          5  alright, so if we have new buildings that we know

          6  that are coming on line in our districts, we could

          7  think about trying to emphasize usage of some of

          8  these pilots?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Exactly.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Alright.  The

         11  other question I have and just in terms of the

         12  technology.  You know, we always hope that something

         13  will come along so that we don't have to look for

         14  these sites and, you know, storage and so on. Is

         15  there, are there other countries that are doing

         16  anything that is as innovative as what you're doing,

         17  or are you the king on the innovation?

         18                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I could state

         19  unequivocally, I am not the king --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  -- On

         21  innovation and technology --

         22                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Oh, on that I am,

         23  no I'm just kidding --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: You're the

         25  king Christopher, go ahead --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WARD: There is, I

          3  believe DEP is really, with our European partners,

          4  which have really set the, you know, in many cases,

          5  the standard for this --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  -- Yes, they

          7  have --

          8                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Has really

          9  explored very innovative and aggressive ways to deal

         10  with CSO's, as well as waste water treatment.  The

         11  hallmark of our nitrogen initiative is exactly that

         12  kind of small scale package innovative

         13  implementation without the costly price tag or the

         14  potential infrastructure.

         15                 I would only state that the CSO

         16  solution, when people talk about, well how can you

         17  solve the CSO problem? You're talking about a

         18  massive infrastructure requirement here. If you were

         19  going to say, you should not have CSO discharges in

         20  New York City.  With 460 outfalls, the ability to

         21  link all of those outfalls with an interceptor and

         22  take them to a waste water treatment plant, would be

         23  catastrophically expensive.

         24                 Similarly, local treatment, whether

         25  it's chlorine or other forms of treatment in those
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          2  460 locations would, would raise all sorts of costs

          3  and community concerns.  I guess what I want to come

          4  back to is, what we need to look at is, where is the

          5  problem that we are really facing?  Is it harbor-

          6  wide?  Is it local?  What can we do if it's local?

          7  What's a cost- effective strategy for those

          8  communities, and maybe it's not simply tanks, but

          9  other strategies, and how do we continue to plan

         10  while we're assessing and implementing those two

         11  scenarios.

         12                 But, and I don't mean to sort to be

         13  that Washington is going to potentially be a problem

         14  here, but there is discussion of some point of a

         15  zero tolerance for CSO's, and if that were to occur,

         16  you would be facing an enormous infrastructure bill

         17  for New York City.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, and

         19  just finally, on the education front, when you talk

         20  about, you know, some commercial sectors pouring

         21  things down that they shouldn't, what is the

         22  education on that?  What is the --

         23                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- DEP has a

         24  whole program within our community office that goes

         25  out into areas where you have seen deterioration of
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          2  the sewer system due to this problem and are working

          3  with local restaurants on how they can discharge of

          4  their, you know, cooking oils and grease in

          5  environmentally sensitive ways.  So, we have people

          6  who are visiting restaurants, where we know that

          7  there is, in fact, a problem within the sewer

          8  system.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And do the

         10  police department and the fire department and

         11  everybody else have that same information, since

         12  they're there more often that you are?

         13                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Actually, that's

         14  a good suggestion.  I'm not sure they do, and that's

         15  something that we can --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  -- In other

         17  words, the whole first responder, in the most

         18  general sense, could have that same information, so

         19  that they could also, as they visit --

         20                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- That's a good

         21  idea --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  -- Curtail

         23  the -- I can give you lots of other suggestions

         24  which you would like.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Okay.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Thanks.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you

          6  Council Member Brewer.  Thank you.  I couldn't help

          7  but think during your last response to Council

          8  Member Brewer's question about trying to develop

          9  innovative solutions to deal with storm water.  I

         10  couldn't help but notice that my good friend, Paul

         11  Mankiewicz is sitting in the audience, and I believe

         12  is scheduled to testify. I think you've embarked on

         13  a collaboration with Paul Mankiewicz regarding some

         14  natural plans and whatever and to sort of uptake and

         15  some of the, some of the pathogens that are part of

         16  the storm water, that's a fact that you've tried to

         17  use some of his techniques, and could you talk about

         18  the collaboration --

         19                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Sure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- That you --

         21                 COMMISSIONER WARD:   Sure.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm going to

         23  talk to Paul about it when he gets up, but that's

         24  certainly the, you know, the type of innovation that

         25  this Chairman and this Committee certainly would
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          2  encourage.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.  The

          4  concept is that it's grown out of a variety of

          5  initiatives within DEP, from the Bluebelt initiative

          6  on Staten Island to storm water runoff control as a

          7  part of our Croton watershed protection effort, that

          8  there are a lot of ecologically- based storm water

          9  capture strategies that don't rely on a large pipe

         10  and a big cement box.

         11                 The Bluebelt strategy on Staten

         12  Island has proved, one, cost- effective, and

         13  environmentally effective, and in fact, improved the

         14  value of homes in areas around Staten Island, where

         15  instead of piping it to a tank, you're using the

         16  natural geology and topology of an area to create

         17  stilling ponds, so that nature, in a sense, acts

         18  its, as a natural filter to reduce the discharge

         19  into the local water bodies.

         20                 What we have been discussing with

         21  Paul, and I'll be -- Paul would probably say it,

         22  it's not, has gone as fast as we would like,

         23  probably on our part, is what are the storm water

         24  efforts and we could use for the Croton watershed

         25  protection effort, replicating the Bluebelt strategy
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          2  in and around the Croton watershed, to reduce the

          3  amount of discharge into that water body.

          4                 We have, are developing a series of

          5  pilot initiatives that we would hope to bring Paul's

          6  insight and approach to those sorts of locations in

          7  and around Croton, where there's swales, where

          8  there's storm water heads, and where you're seeing

          9  significant amounts of erosion.  It's something

         10  we're committed to.  We could probably be doing it

         11  faster, but we're continuing to move forward.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Great.  Well,

         13  that sounds -- I certainly want to encourage that

         14  and the strongest terms we could help that process

         15  along with budget or whatever else, you know, might

         16  be needed.  Speaking as a geologist, certainly to

         17  the extent that we could use mother nature where we

         18  can, and you know, rely on concrete and pipes for

         19  the rest.  That would be -- I'm very, very bullish

         20  on that.

         21                 Let me just a quick follow- up on the

         22  beach question.  This new standard, do you believe

         23  that in all cases the use of the newer standard

         24  would result in more beach closings, or is it, in

         25  some instances, the new standard would be more
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          2  strict than in other cases, sort of like the old

          3  standard would be more strict.  What's your sense of

          4  that?

          5                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  My sense is that

          6  there's a concern that it could potentially be more

          7  strict.  But, having said, there is still some gray

          8  area in the regulations about calculation and

          9  enforcement, which we're working with EPA on, and

         10  it's a matter of testing protocol.  The issue for

         11  the City is, does a standard, which might be

         12  scientifically more specific, give you a health

         13  based standard, or simply a scientific standard?

         14                 I must, I'll give EPA credit, I think

         15  it was the 1979 season, where they did health based

         16  monitoring and census of people going to the beach

         17  and frequency of illnesses as a result of going to a

         18  New York City beach, appears to indicate that the

         19  enterococci standard gives you a higher health

         20  protection level. But, we're not sure that when, if

         21  you consistently enforce it, that the amount of

         22  beach closures on balance is an appropriate

         23  standard.

         24                 So, it's a very, very difficult area,

         25  and I think what you have to ask yourself, as
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          2  Councilmen, is can New York City, for the quality of

          3  life and the environment of its residents without a

          4  significantly increased health risk, lose public

          5  access to our beaches, and how do we balance a

          6  scientific test, which is stricter, but not

          7  necessarily be a health based standard?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well, certainly

          9  it's something we're going to have to think about a

         10  little more.  I understand that the rules pursuant

         11  to this are handled by the Health Department --

         12                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Correct --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- Right, and so

         14  we're kind of in the wrong Committee.  But,

         15  certainly of interest to Councilman Yassky and

         16  myself and we're, I guess, certain to have

         17  conversation with Chairperson Chris Quinn on this,

         18  on this important issue.

         19                 One final note about using innovation

         20  and other strategies to get to the goal.  It seems

         21  as though over, in the last 12 years, since the  '92

         22  Consent Order, the City has kind of met the standard

         23  that was envisioned, you know, by that Consent

         24  Order, even though the tanks weren't built, because,

         25  as you said, we did other things.  Do you have any
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          2  sense of how much it would have cost for those six

          3  tanks to achieve those standards versus what it cost

          4  to do those other things to essentially achieve the

          5  same result?

          6                 COMMISSIONER WARD: I'd have to get, I

          7  mean, I'm just trying to remember off the top of my

          8  head.  It was essentially that the remaining tanks

          9  were going to be about $800 million, was the cost of

         10  the remaining -- I'd have to get you those numbers.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I understand.

         12  But, I mean, here's, just --

         13                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- I think if

         14  you're asking, again, the sort of classic cost

         15  benefit question, I think the City, in terms of

         16  where the resources were spent in waste water

         17  upgrade, we -- from a cost benefit perspective, we

         18  did far better for all our water bodies, focusing on

         19  our waste water treatment plants.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Now, when we do

         21  the tanks and other thing, we'll have the -- I guess

         22  my point was, you know, we always depend upon people

         23  to use money in the wisest way and so, through a

         24  combination of innovation, plus the tried and true

         25  tank method, were appropriate, as set forth in the
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          2  Consent Order, will certainly give us some

          3  opportunity to reflect on the entire strategy, as we

          4  read the Consent Order and figure out where this

          5  body stands, vis- a- vis the work that's been put

          6  forward by your agency and DEC.

          7                 So, once again, thank you for your

          8  comprehensive -- oh --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Chair Gennaro, I

         10  just, just because something in your, that last

         11  colloquy, I just want to make sure I get this.  You

         12  just said, it sounds like, that the City did the

         13  right thing by doing what we did over the last 12

         14  years, rather than what was originally envisioned,

         15  that from a cost benefit perspective, we got, you

         16  know, better bang for the buck.

         17                 I'm not going to put words in your

         18  mouth about good results, acceptable results, but we

         19  got, sounds like you were saying, more, a cost

         20  benefit analysis would look back and say, that what

         21  we did over the last 12 years was better than -- if

         22  that's, you know, then why are we paying a $2

         23  million fine? In other words, why --

         24                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Honestly,
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          2  why, that's, maybe I'm, maybe I'm misunderstanding,

          3  but to me, I take it as the framework that the State

          4  regulators, on behalf of the Federal Clean Water

          5  Act, are saying, you know, you said you were going

          6  to do it, you didn't do it, that was bad.  I mean,

          7  and so that's why we're getting fined.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- Right --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- If it's our

         10  position is, hey we did, we were smart, we did a

         11  better thing for our citizens, then we shouldn't get

         12  fined at all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I'd like to

         14  actually chime in.  I think when there is, when

         15  there's a Consent Order set forth, as it was in

         16  1992, the words in those Consent Order mean

         17  something.  It means that, you know, you were

         18  supposed to do what this Consent Order says.  No

         19  one's really shying away from that, and had we been

         20  able to close the loop on some of those things and

         21  get those done, we would have the added benefits

         22  today of having done that.  Plus, the result of the

         23  other innovations that were done in the interim and,

         24  we would certainly be at a better place today, had

         25  all that stuff got done.
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          2                 I don't think anyone is really, I

          3  don't think anyone really takes issue with that.  I

          4  think the interesting point is that to follow what

          5  it says in Consent Orders and fulfill your mandate

          6  under the law and continue where appropriate, to use

          7  innovation and other strategies as an adjunct to

          8  what is set forth, and I think that was really like

          9  more the sense of it.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I think any

         11  regulator which has to enforce a consent decree that

         12  somebody signs.  So, while we would argue, harbor-

         13  wide, we spent our money wisely from a cost benefit

         14  ratio, I will be clear that we did not meet the

         15  standards that the regulator would have want for the

         16  local tributaries.  That's why we ended up paying a

         17  fine.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  I guess

         19  that's the last word.  We have many other wonderful

         20  witnesses to hear from. Once again, Commissioner,

         21  pleasure to have you and your good people.  Thanks

         22  also to the Health Department for being here.  I

         23  know that people from the agencies will stay back to

         24  listen to the good and comprehensive testimony that

         25  we'll have from our other witnesses.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You bet.  We're

          5  going be paneling our witnesses.  We'll have a panel

          6  made up of Paul Mankiewicz of The Gaia Institute,

          7  Reed Super of Riverkeeper, Bradford Sewell of NRDC,

          8  Genie Flatow.  Hi Genie.  Oh, you're on this panel.

          9  And Andy Willner of Baykeeper.

         10                 The next panel, these people are on

         11  deck, Franco Montalto, of eDesign Dynamics, Linda

         12  Cox, Bronx River Alliance, Shannon Stone, Community

         13  Environmental Center, Linda Eskenas, I'm sorry, hope

         14  I'm saying that right, North Shore Waterfront

         15  Greenbelt from Staten Island, and Karen Argenti,

         16  representing herself.  Make sure I have all the

         17  testimony here.

         18                 Thank you, thank you for your

         19  patience.  So, what we'll do is, we have all the --

         20  I'd like to welcome all of the members of the panel,

         21  thank you very much for being here.  What we'll do,

         22  is we'll have Counsel to the Committee, Donna De

         23  Costanzo to administer the oath or affirmation, and

         24  then we'll swear in everybody at once, and then

         25  people can, in turn, present their testimony in an
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          2  order that you can determine, and then I'll hold my

          3  questions and comments for the end, okay?

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Please raise

          5  your right hand.  In the testimony that you're about

          6  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

          7  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          8                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  I do.

          9                 MS. FLATOW:  I do.

         10                 MR. SEWELL:  I do.

         11                 MR. WILLNER:  I do.

         12                 MR. SUPER:  I do.

         13                 MR. CRAFT:  I do.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  I guess

         16  Paul looks like he's going first.  Okay.

         17                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  Thank you.  It's

         18  Paul Mankiewicz, and I represent the New York City

         19  Soil and Water Conservation District, as well as The

         20  Gaia Institute, a group that works on ecological

         21  engineering and applied biogeochemical systems

         22  through natural filtration.

         23                 I'll be very brief.  320 square miles

         24  of New York City is geologically complex, but

         25  underneath it is a filter much, much larger, perhaps
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          2  thousands of times larger than one would need to

          3  purify all the storm water and the combined sewer

          4  discharges in the City.  Under the 320 square miles,

          5  there literally are billions of cubic yards of sand.

          6  The earliest water filter used by towns along the

          7  Rhine and other villages along other rivers in

          8  western Europe, China and Japan, and there are

          9  essentially large enough, a large enough system to

         10  hold virtually all of the 40 inches of rain that the

         11  City receives each year.

         12                 The old industrial city has been

         13  committed to a combined sewer.  It basically couples

         14  the storm water, as well as the sewers altogether,

         15  and the degree to which that stays combined, of

         16  course, will continue to negatively impact our

         17  surroundings.  But, the geological mosaic of the

         18  City, the extensive marine from literally Western,

         19  Eastern Queens all the way across Staten Island, the

         20  glacial outwash, the glacial tills over the rocky

         21  substrat of the Bronx and Manhattan provides an

         22  immense filtration capacity.

         23                 There's two strategies that I just

         24  want to lay out at this moment.  One is akin to the

         25  Bluebelt, which is a fine program altogether, where
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          2  we use wetland systems.  Wetlands are exceedingly

          3  good at removing nitrogen.  They're not particularly

          4  good at removing phosphorous, and they only remove

          5  things like pathogens, when there's enough time for

          6  the pathogens to be destroyed in the wetlands

          7  system.  It's usually more than a couple to several

          8  days, longer than the hydro period of some of the

          9  Bluebelt wetlands, as beautiful as they are.

         10                 The natural filters of the soil,

         11  especially the top centimeter, which has got

         12  something like 10 million or a billion bacteria in

         13  each cubic centimeter, has a capacity to remove

         14  phosphorous pathogens, as well as nitrogen and

         15  hydrocarbons.  Probably the primary sync for

         16  hydrocarbons on the planet is the emic matter in the

         17  surface layer of the terrestrial biosphere.  What we

         18  need to do, essentially, is extend the kind of

         19  approach that was initiated here at the Bluebelt, so

         20  that, literally, we bring life back to what is an

         21  increasingly dry City.

         22                 While Commissioner Ward didn't

         23  mention it, one of the primary causes of the urban

         24  heatline (phonetic) effect is the fact that we have

         25  an exceedingly efficient storm water system, out of
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          2  the one time, it, at once takes water away from the

          3  land and away from the plants and the soils, which

          4  filter that water as at the same time it discharges

          5  those materials into the surrounding estuary.

          6                 Our options here are to increase the

          7  amount of relatively quite clean water that comes

          8  from the creeks that used to surround all the

          9  boroughs.  There used to be 50 around the Bronx.

         10  There's now three, and that same applies for the

         11  rest of the boroughs, Brooklyn, Queens, Staten

         12  Island.

         13                 Those creeks were, essentially, the

         14  sediment budget and the output from the water table

         15  that presently gone, much of that water goes into

         16  the waste water treatment facilities.  If we can

         17  actually restore the landscape with that level of

         18  water, the heat problem, as well as the water

         19  capture capacity of the land will increase.

         20                 Today, after many dry days in a row,

         21  the erosion around the City was enormous.  One of

         22  the reasons is that the water has been removed from

         23  the City's landscape, and moist soil is a very good

         24  absorbent, dry soil is not good at all.  A

         25  systematic approach would require distributing the
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          2  treatment systems where the treatment is required.

          3  That is to say, making the City, its landscapes, its

          4  street edges, its park edges and its rooftops,

          5  ecological, ecological surfaces, as opposed to the

          6  dead surfaces that is the dry, conductive, water

          7  conductive impervial, impervious surfaces that they

          8  are presently.

          9                 So, the choices are wetland catchment

         10  and basically, permeable surfaces altogether.  We

         11  need to couple those as well.  In low lying areas

         12  like Staten Island, wetlands makes sense.  In upland

         13  areas like all of Woodland Cemetery, all of the

         14  moraine of Queens and Brooklyn, including your

         15  district and the outwash plains, we need basically

         16  to use terracing deep beds for water capture and,

         17  essentially, a means of holding water long enough so

         18  it goes into the ground, as opposed to over the

         19  surfaces and into the combined sewers.

         20                 The surface required would be

         21  something like the scale of the parks in New York

         22  City.  Something like ten percent of the land could

         23  probably capture virtually all of the runoff from

         24  even a large storm like today.  It's just a matter

         25  of how it's configured, and it's a matter of
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          2  coupling our park land, our ecological systems that

          3  are, in some cases, the only places where people

          4  have any greenery in the South Central Bronx and the

          5  Southern Bronx with water catchment.

          6                 In some areas, like the Downtown, 90

          7  percent of the area is rooftops, and rooftop green

          8  roofs will work well in those environments.  In

          9  other areas, like, for example, parts of Jamaica

         10  Queens and the low lying areas along Jamaica Bay,

         11  wetland systems are what we need, and we need,

         12  probably some kind of informed committee to

         13  basically rewrite the building code, so that we

         14  address this on a systematic basis, where it doesn't

         15  all require the Commissioner's stamp, but depends

         16  upon our appreciation and apprehension of

         17  infiltration.  And, infiltration rates are

         18  basically, presently, right as we speak, being

         19  documented by the soil sort of right here in the

         20  City and in other cities.  This is the kind of basis

         21  that we need for ecologically re- engineering the

         22  City's landscape.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         24  thank you. I'll make my comments later.  Genie, you

         25  up?  You got to put your, got to put the mic on,
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          2  you've got to state  --

          3                 MS. FLATOW: Sorry.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  Your name

          5  for the record.

          6                 MS. FLATOW:  You've heard me long

          7  enough to know that I thoroughly back everything

          8  that Paul is doing and it has been something which

          9  we have been bringing to the attention of the

         10  Commissioner, and he is listening, and we think

         11  that's an important thing to do.

         12                 Listening to what you did this

         13  morning, I have three comments to make.  The first

         14  is the process for getting a Consent Order is so

         15  poor, I would say it stinks.  There is no community

         16  consultation, there are no scientists there, there

         17  are a bunch of lawyers in the back room and they

         18  come up with something and they go to the courts,

         19  and it makes it absolute, and that is not the way to

         20  do a Consent Order.  We are one of the few states

         21  that uses that premise and I think there ought to be

         22  a better way to make sure that these Consent Orders

         23  are looked at scientifically and from an economic

         24  point of view of what makes the best sense.

         25                 The second thing is that I appreciate
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          2  the questions that we got from Gale Brewer because

          3  Paul has told you how those things will be necessary

          4  in some parts of the City,

          5                 My third point is that your Intro. is

          6   -- thank God we have it, it's marvelous -- but

          7  please let's have some very tough work on how we

          8  redo the municipal code, because the things that I

          9  read so far don't seem to take us very far and I

         10  think we need some consultation on it.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you

         12  Genie.

         13                 MR. SEWELL:  Brad Sewell with the

         14  Natural Resource Defense Council.  Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Greetings.

         17  Now, do you have a written statement from --

         18                 MR. SEWELL: I do not --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, fine --

         20                 MR. SEWELL:  We'll submit one after.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'll just

         22  stop looking for it.  Okay, go ahead.

         23                 MR. SEWELL:  Thank you --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pleasure.  Thank

         25  you. Thank you for coming.
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          2                 MR. SEWELL:  -- For inviting to come

          3  and looking forward to providing a brief testimony.

          4  I want to go right to something that Commissioner

          5  Ward said and had in his Powerpoint presentation

          6  that he recognized would be controversial, and that

          7  is the statement that the impacts from CSO's are not

          8  significant, and NRDC and other environmental groups

          9  and other regulatory agencies don't agree with that

         10  statement.  NRDC doesn't think the DEP is even using

         11  the right things in order to come to this

         12  conclusion.

         13                 For example, you can't look at

         14  contaminants spread across a broad temporal scale

         15  and make it have any relevance to the CSO problem,

         16  or contaminants measured on an average basis across

         17  a broad geographic scale and have it have much

         18  relevance to the CSO problem, because the CSO

         19  problem, at least in, in part and possibly large

         20  part, is something where you get localized spikes

         21  that are temporally limited.  You know, spikes, in

         22  which there are violations of water quality

         23  standards immediately following storms, and then

         24  they dissipate, and are geographically limited.

         25                 In additionally (sic), the measures
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          2  that DEP is choosing to focus on are also not the

          3  measures that many of us are concerned about,

          4  meaning DEC and others are concerned that CSO's are

          5  primary sources of lead, mercury, organic pollutants

          6  like PCB's, dioxin, and the data's there to show it.

          7                 Unfortunately, we don't have the

          8  comprehensive monitoring program to really then take

          9  the next step to figure out exactly how significant

         10  the problem is and go about fixing it.  So, to put

         11  maybe a little local need on these general concepts

         12  that I just said about what the problem is with

         13  CSO's. Jamaica Bay, I mean in Jamaica Bay, you've

         14  got sediment toxicity that, in four sites, it was

         15  highly toxic in 1993 and seven sites in  '98 it was

         16  rated highly toxic.  So, it actually almost doubled

         17  over that period.

         18                 When harbor- wide, as Commissioner

         19  Ward appropriately explained, you have harbor- wide

         20  these measures generally showing harbor- wide

         21  quality improvements, but you've got localized

         22  problems.  Oxygen levels in Jamaica Bay went down,

         23  algae levels went up.  That's been a trend that been

         24  particularly striking over the last few years.

         25  Water clarity has declined in Jamaica Bay almost 30
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          2  percent since 1986.

          3                 Additionally, and I guess this is the

          4  final point on what the -- that I want to make on

          5  what the CSO problem is, we're at a point of sort of

          6  stases to our water quality improvements.  We've

          7  hit, what people are recognizing as a plateau of

          8  what we're going to get to and we have accomplished

          9  a lot in a couple of decades.  But, if we're going

         10  to make the next jump and go into a sort of 21st

         11  century environment for New York City, we're going

         12  to have to deal with the CSO problem and we're going

         13  to have to deal with it in a manner other than what

         14  I heard today is manifested in the draft of his CO.

         15                 So, getting now to the final thing I

         16  want to talk about, which is some observations on

         17  what I heard today about the ACO issue.  First of

         18  all, the  '92 ACO didn't say it's a six tank plan.

         19  It said, do facility plans that meet water quality

         20  standards, and you'll come up with facility plans as

         21  a generic term with milestones, and you're going to

         22  go forward and implement that.  The six tank, eight

         23  tank plan, is DEP's particular definition of it

         24  today for purposes of illustrating what they

         25  represent are improvements in the 2004 ACO.
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          2                 The other thing that concerns me

          3  quite a bit is this, is the ACO plan is going on a

          4  concurrent track with this visitation of the water

          5  quality standards and use classifications for

          6  various water bodies around the City.

          7                 As I understand it, the major

          8  components in the 2004 ACO are contingent upon that

          9  concurrent process of visiting water quality

         10  standards and that there's no commitment to actually

         11  spend the big bucks and do the big improvements in

         12  terms of CSO abatement until there's some resolved,

         13  assumedly the way DEP would like it, via that, that

         14  water quality standard process. And, to be more

         15  specific, I mean, this is a process by which they're

         16  going to look at water quality standards throughout

         17  water bodies in the City and use classifications and

         18  see if they can downgrade these water bodies, and

         19  move away from a fishable, swimmable goal, that, as

         20  a nation, we've had set for our waters for some

         21  time.

         22                 Let me see, I think I'll probably

         23  wrap up on that, except just one very specific point

         24  in terms of what we heard about a $550 million being

         25  spent over the next ten years.  I don't see what
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          2  that gets in terms of any substantial improvement in

          3  terms of CSO abatement.  That's a pittance relative

          4  to what's been estimated to needed to be spent to

          5  get some significant improvement on CSO abatement.

          6                 So, I think that it is critical for

          7  the Council to press DEP as to what they expect

          8  after spending $550 million at the end of ten years

          9  in terms of actual progress over where we're at

         10  today.  I don't think that it's very much, because,

         11  again, as I said, that these, that the big bucks and

         12  the big improvements are really in these out years

         13  and are contingent upon this process that different

         14  people want to go different ways.  Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         17  thank you.  Hi Andy, how you doing?

         18                 MR. WILLNER:  How you doing?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Please

         20  state your name for the record.

         21                 MR. WILLNER:  My name is Andrew

         22  Willner w- i- l- l- n e- r.  I'm the Executive

         23  Director of the New York/New Jersey Baykeeper.  I'm

         24  going to defer a lot of my comments to my

         25  colleagues, because it sounds like a lot of
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          2  replication.  But, I want to give you some personal

          3  thoughts, and I did provide the Members with some

          4  statements generally about the effects of CSO's, and

          5  make what use you would like of those and let me

          6  know if there's other information you need that goes

          7  along with that.

          8                 In general, while I sat here, with

          9  all due respect to Commission Ward, I'm losing

         10  patience with the process.  I gave testimony in 1992

         11  in this room about the Consent Order and how I

         12  thought it fell short.  I think that what we're

         13  seeing now is what I predicted would happen, that

         14  the tanks were a solution developed by the DEP, so

         15  that they would never have to do them, because they

         16  would turn out to be too expensive to do.  I think

         17  this Consent Order that I'm seeing today brings that

         18  home to me again.  So, we're losing patience.

         19                 The way we deal with things when I

         20  lose patience, is that I talk to my lawyers, and in

         21  New Jersey, when we found that the, that the State

         22  had not, had not complied, that no municipality in

         23  New Jersey had complied with the EPA's nine minimum

         24  controls for CSO's and through a general permit, we

         25  start suing people.
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          2                 When we found that the City had not

          3  complied with the nitrogen limits and their

          4  discharge permits, we started suing the City.  I

          5  don't want to get to that point, where we have to do

          6  that again.  But, I notice in one of Commissioner

          7  Ward's slides, was the word that it held them open

          8  to liability and litigation. So, I wanted to bring

          9  that to the Council's attention, that that's

         10  something that, although we're not considering now

         11  in consultation with our colleagues, depending on

         12  the reading of this Administrative Consent Order,

         13  it's something that we have to start to look at.

         14                 On a more positive note, we've had

         15  some good examples that we've worked on as an

         16  organization with our colleagues, that will address

         17  some of the issues of storm water abatement and

         18  treatment.  There's a big project you may be aware

         19  of in the New Jersey Meadowlands, called the Xanadu

         20  Project, where they're redeveloping parts of the

         21  Sports and Exposition Authority site.  None of that

         22  water, either the sewage or the storm water, will

         23  leave that site as a result of an agreement that was

         24  reached with the Authority and the stake holders in

         25  that process, including the States, and the EPA and
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          2  the Corps of Engineers.  So that every bit of that

          3  storm water and the sanitary sewage will be treated

          4  within the confines of that property.  The gray

          5  water will be reused, the treated sewage will be

          6  used for irrigation and other processes, and even

          7  making snow for an indoor ski slope.

          8                 We've worked with, we made a proposal

          9  a couple of years ago, along with The Gaia Institute

         10  and Cahill Associates to work on pilot projects for

         11  storm water treatment using the fringes of urban

         12  areas, the, you know, the outsides of cemeteries and

         13  the grassy areas along roadways, and a variety of

         14  innovative things which Paul can go into greater

         15  detail about. But, those things exist.  They're

         16  doable.

         17                 Our organization is available for

         18  consultation, and we obviously are going to work

         19  with our colleagues both inside the City and the

         20  region to make sure that both the, the CSO's are

         21  dealt with in a timely way, and, of course, we

         22  always respect the concept that you need to do it in

         23  an economical way. But, we believe that if you

         24  figure in the loss of swimming, the loss of fishing,

         25  the loss of outdoor recreation, the loss of business
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          2  that occurs when you have a major release of

          3  untreated combined sewer overflow materials.

          4                 One graphic example, and I don't want

          5  to belabor this, is that Paerdegat Basin has come to

          6  our attention on several occasions.  One time, I

          7  finally had to insist that two conservation officers

          8  meet me there because the situation was so

          9  outrageous that, you know, it was enough to, excuse

         10  the expression, gag a maggot.  I mean, you could not

         11  take a boat up to the head of Paerdegat Basin

         12  without stirring up enough of what is literally

         13  solids from sewage on the bottom, so that people get

         14  nauseated as a result.

         15                 There are people who are using boats

         16  in that region, people who are sculling and canoeing

         17  and kayaking and the cost of that is insurmountable.

         18  So, it has to be figured into any cost benefit

         19  analysis.  So, with that, thank you for your time

         20  and we look forward to working with the Council and

         21  the DEP on this very important issue.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         23  thank you Andy.  Hey Reed.  You've got to put the,

         24  you've got to make the light go off.

         25                 MR. SUPER:  Got it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

          3                 MR. SUPER:  My name is Reed Super.

          4  I'm a Senior Attorney for the environmental

          5  organization Riverkeeper, and it's a distinct

          6  pleasure to appear before these two Committees.

          7                 In my limited time, I will skip past

          8  the topics of how CSO's affect water resources and

          9  the long unfortunate history of insufficient

         10  remedial efforts, and proceed directly to what the

         11  law currently requires of DEP, and what else can be

         12  done in conjunction with DEP's plan to address the

         13  CSO problem.  My written comments address all of

         14  those issues, and of course, I'll answer any

         15  questions that the Committee would pose.  I'll also

         16  try to respond to Commissioner Ward's testimony,

         17  though, like you, I have not yet had an opportunity

         18  to read the Consent Order.

         19                 The City's requirements with regard

         20  to CSO's come from Federal law, which is implemented

         21  by the State, and in the year 2000, those Federal

         22  requirements were strengthened. Congress' Wet

         23  Weather Water Quality Act of 2000 now requires

         24  compliance with EPA's CSO control policy.  As

         25  Commissioner Ward acknowledged, that policy requires
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          2  that any municipality, like New York, whose water

          3  quality is impaired by CSO's, must develop a long-

          4  term CSO control plan containing about nine required

          5  components.

          6                 The linchpin of such plan is that DEP

          7  must model current and future CSO events, model

          8  water quality over time, and then link these two

          9  models in a way that demonstrates that the planned

         10  CSO control measures will, when implemented,

         11  actually attain water quality standards, either by

         12  eliminating CSO's or by preventing them from

         13  impairing water quality.  Under the statute, SPDES

         14  permits must require the development of the plan and

         15  then incorporate the developed plan, so that the

         16  plan becomes a part of the permit.

         17                 In these regards, the required long-

         18  term plan must be very different from the  '92

         19  Consent Order.  The  '92 Order required the City to

         20  take certain measures.  But, it did not include the

         21  now required demonstration that those steps would

         22  actually lead to the attainment of water quality

         23  standards.

         24                 Last year, DEC proposed new draft

         25  permits for the City's 14 sewage plants.  But, DEC
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          2  failed to require in those permits a long- term

          3  control plan.  As a result of that glaring omission,

          4  Riverkeeper, Baykeeper, Soundkeeper and NRDC have

          5  all requested an adjudicatory hearing before a DEC

          6  Administrative Law Judge on the legal adequacy of

          7  the permits.

          8                 Most significantly, whatever this new

          9  Consent Order says, we still lack the long- term

         10  control plan, or even an enforceable schedule for

         11  development of the plan, no less implementation of

         12  the plan, as required by law.  Now, in response to a

         13  question from Councilman Yassky, Commissioner Ward

         14  said, yes, this new Consent Order fully complies

         15  with the CSO control policy.  I haven't read it yet,

         16  but what I believe he meant to say was, that the new

         17  Consent Order requires DEP to develop the plan at

         18  some time in the future.  It may set a schedule for

         19  it or it may not.  But, I believe that all it says

         20  is they must go do that plan.  But, we still don't

         21  have that plan, which is the linchpin to obtaining

         22  water quality standards.

         23                 The adjudication in front of the DEC

         24  ALJ and ultimate litigation that may come from that

         25  may force the development of a long- term plan.
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          2  But, sitting here today, we can recommend a solution

          3  to the CSO problem containing at least two major

          4  components that relate directly to the two topics

          5  for this particular hearing.  Oversight of DEC's

          6  program and green development practices.

          7                 So, first, DEP must expeditiously

          8  complete development of, and begin implementing, a

          9  long- term control plan, as required by Federal law.

         10    Until the City links it's CSO modeling with its

         11  water quality monitoring, we have no basis for

         12  assessing the effectiveness, the cost or the timing

         13  of control measures.  Ultimately, the control

         14  measures can include storage tanks or other methods,

         15  such as high rate treatment at discharge points,

         16  separating portions of the sewage and a topic I want

         17  to conclude with, which is green building practices.

         18                 But, let me first mention that even

         19  when the plan is formally in place, we must

         20  carefully monitor and diligently enforce compliance

         21  with the plan.  Based on DEP's and DEC's track

         22  records to date, we cannot simply trust that the

         23  plan will get

         24  implemented in the absence of continuing scrutiny.

         25                 Now, the second part of the solution
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          2  recognizes that what we do on land directly affects

          3  the water.  Green building practices can drastically

          4  reduce or eliminate combined sewage contribution

          5  from any particular site to the overall system.  The

          6  six measures that I will suggest can be components

          7  of DEP's long- term plan, or they can be the subject

          8  of legislation or initiatives undertaken by other

          9  City actors. Either way, they will take coordination

         10  between various City departments.  Intro. Number 162

         11  seems to be a good start in that direction.  Other

         12  ideas would include:

         13                 1)  Requiring a detailed CSO impact

         14  evaluation as part of the overall seeker

         15  environmental review process for major development

         16  projects.

         17                 2)  When rezoning land for increased

         18  density, which would otherwise increase the sewage

         19  generated per acre, require instead that the net

         20  combined sewage flow from the property be no greater

         21  than the existing zoning or the existing conditions,

         22  whichever is lower.

         23                 3)  Require or encourage green

         24  building practices, such as green roofs, on- site

         25  treatment facilities, or other measures in new or
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          2  renovated buildings, City- wide, as is currently

          3  done in some pilot projects and as required in

          4  Battery Park City.

          5                 4)  The largest redevelopment

          6  projects, which, of course, can have the largest

          7  impact, such as the World Trade Center, Hudson Yards

          8  and a possible Olympic Village, should be models of

          9  redevelopment and not squander once in a generation

         10  opportunities to make substantial progress on fixing

         11  CSO's.

         12                 5)  Apply appropriate phase two storm

         13  water permit requirements now used to prevent direct

         14  storm water pollution to construction projects which

         15  discharge into the City's combined system.

         16                 6)  Perhaps most importantly, as Paul

         17  Mankiewicz from The Gaia Institute explained and has

         18  discussed, retrofit our parks, our parkways, our

         19  City streets to divert storm water from the combined

         20  sewers and drastically increase the volume that is

         21  captured and absorbed by surface and subsurface

         22  soil.  As he testified, there is enough holding

         23  capacity in all the soil under New York City for all

         24  of the storm water that falls on the five boroughs.

         25                 In all of these components, there
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          2  needs to be an extensive public participation

          3  component, and I guess I'll stop there.  Thank you

          4  very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          6  Thank you Reed.  Mr. Craft, welcome, please state

          7  your name for the record and --

          8                 MR. CRAFT: Thanks.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Proceed, and

         10  thank you for this --

         11                 MR. CRAFT: My name is Carter Craft.

         12  I'm Director of the Metropolitan Waterfront

         13  Alliance.  Thanks for the opportunity to testify.

         14  We've heard a lot of it, in fact, most of it

         15  already.  But, I just want to add a little bit, in

         16  that storm water runoff is really caused by every

         17  City agency.  You know, ultimately, it's the water

         18  rate payers who bear the burden of building these

         19  giant, sort of, end of pipe containment tanks. But,

         20  as we're hearing here today, and some of us, like

         21  Andy, knew a long time ago, you know, this strategy

         22  for handling storm water is going to be no more

         23  successful than expanding highways to accommodate

         24  traffic or building more jails to solve crime.

         25                 The challenge, I think, is, is not
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          2  just to, you know, put the screws to the private

          3  players, but also to the City agencies themselves.

          4  You know, just in the building we're in, regulated

          5  by the Department of Buildings, when the rain falls,

          6  it, you know, makes its way down the side of this

          7  building, across the Department of Parks and

          8  Recreation lawn, over to a DOT sidewalk, down into a

          9  Chamber Street gutter, and ultimately, into a DEP

         10  catch basin.  But, it's every one of those agencies

         11  along the way that's contributed to its very

         12  existence.

         13                 Four points, I think, where we could

         14  focus on the Administration to draw more attention,

         15  and positive attention, to solving the runoff

         16  problem, you know, one is street trees. They're

         17  really the first line of defense in storm water

         18  prevention.  You know, not just the public private

         19  roots, but on the public sidewalks.  Right now,

         20  we've got City Parks Department maintain streets

         21  trees, sort of caught in this nasty web of concrete

         22  and steel between the DOT's sidewalks and streets

         23  and DEP's pipes.  Maybe the street trees don't even

         24  belong with the Parks Department at all.  I don't

         25  know if that responsibility should be shuffled to
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          2  another City agency that can take better care of

          3  them, or whether it might make DOT design their

          4  sidewalks and streets differently if they had to

          5  design them to accommodate and enliven street trees.

          6                 You know, a few years ago, DEP

          7  initiated a plan to remove a bunch of unused fire

          8  hydrants.  Had there really been Mayoral attention

          9  to dealing with runoff, every one of those fire

         10  hydrants could have been replaced with a street

         11  tree, rather than an impervious concrete slab.  But,

         12  it didn't happen, you know, the Mayor wasn't paying

         13  attention, as he should.

         14                 Number two, porous paving surfaces.

         15  You know, we're seeing them everywhere, but here.

         16  You know, we've done a lot of work, Good Wood and

         17  other groups trying to get the Parks Department to

         18  use, sort of, tree free lumber, or sustainable

         19  forestry products.  They're laying down, you know,

         20  while we applaud the greenways and the waterfront

         21  promenades that are being created, they're laying

         22  down asphalt, really, as quickly as they can.

         23                 While you may not be getting fecal

         24  coliform off of the Belt Parkway, per se, you're

         25  still picking up a lot of oils and other petroleum-
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          2  based products off of the road surfaces around our

          3  edges.  Just across the river, in the milesquare

          4  metropolis of Hoboken, they built a brand new park

          5  that includes porous sidewalks and greenways, all

          6  the way around it, and that's a town of 32,000

          7  people.

          8                 Number three, green buffers.  As Paul

          9  and others have mentioned, you know, we've got great

         10  waterfront interest and energy happening from the

         11  new parks that are being created, the Hudson River

         12  Park, Queens West, Governor's Island.  Now, the

         13  rezoning of Greenpoint/Williamsburg, and Yassky's

         14  district, you know, really presents the opportunity

         15  for City Planning to think, well, maybe we shouldn't

         16  just require through zoning to put in a promenade

         17  and pathway, maybe we should add in a green buffer

         18  along that as well.

         19                 We're really, we've really got, sort

         20  of, young waterfront zoning rules that haven't

         21  really been tested.  But, it's never too early to

         22  start thinking about improvements that could be

         23  made.  Where DOT is rebuilding highways along the

         24  Harlem River and other places, maybe there are

         25  places where those highways can be pushed back and
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          2  green buffers installed.

          3                 The fourth point gets right to, I

          4  think, what everybody's been talking about, and even

          5  the, even the Commissioner mentioned it in terms of

          6  more demonstration projects.  A green roof on Pace

          7  University will do wonders for media and the

          8  movement and getting people's attention, but we'd

          9  like to see lots of energy and the attention that

         10  your two Committees have put together.  Maybe to see

         11  demonstration projects spring up in every one of

         12  your districts, because now, with DEP having to pay

         13  a $2 million fine, whose to say how that money can

         14  or should be spent.  But, wouldn't it be a great way

         15  to provide sort of seed money for community based

         16  designs and other efforts to solve the problem on

         17  the local level as well?

         18                 Just to sum up, you know, I really, I

         19  think we all have to continue to work together to

         20  tell the Mayor that he should get his Commissioners

         21  of DOT, of Parks and DEP and Buildings to really

         22  think about this problem together, because it's not,

         23  you know, DEP is kind of the bag man, and they're

         24  sort of stuck in generating a solution.  You know,

         25  looking ahead, we have to think that our water
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          2  system makes use of an infrastructure that's 150

          3  years in the making, and as the Commissioner noted,

          4  30 billion, you know, probably more like 40, 50, 60

          5  billion in terms of what we've collectively spent.

          6                 So, before we go ahead creating

          7  expensive new infrastructures, more containment

          8  tanks and pipes and conduits, you know, we really

          9  have to think about more imaginative ways to solve

         10  the problem, so that rate payers and City dwellers

         11  don't have to pay to rebuild these things again and

         12  again in the future.  Thanks.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         14  thank you.  I wish to thank you all for your good

         15  testimony.  I just have a, maybe some -- oh, I'm

         16  sorry, okay.  Oh, I think you may be on the next

         17  panel.  No, that's quite alright.  You can stay

         18  there in their line of fire.  But, I think, yes,

         19  you're on the next panel. You're early for the next

         20  panel, but it's great.  Get comfortable.  You'll see

         21  what it's like up there.

         22                 But, I just want to make one

         23  statement generally before I get into individual

         24  comments.  That is, to the extent that, you know,

         25  you're going to take a look at this thing, I'm going
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          2  to take a look at this thing, Councilman Yassky's

          3  going to take a look at this thing, of course, I

          4  mean the Consent Order. To the extent that you have

          5  views or analysis that you wish to have us include

          6  in our comment on this, as we sort of, you know,

          7  contemplate this, please forward them to the Counsel

          8  of the Committee, Donna De Costanzo.  I know that

          9  you all know her, and we want to get the benefit of

         10  your views on this certainly, because this is really

         11  the issue at hand.

         12                 We should also understand that we're,

         13  as you know, we're dealing with the State and the

         14  State is the regulator.  So, it's not, it's not just

         15  like a DEP function.  This is what the State is sort

         16  of willing to go with.  So, we have to focus our

         17  efforts on the State, as they ponder this, that's

         18  what, of course, the comment period is all about.

         19  So, please share your views with us on how we can

         20  make this better.

         21                 Paul, okay, with the, so we put in a

         22  plug for your efforts.  You know, I know we're on

         23  the record here, whatever, but, you know, what if

         24  you were to write a letter to the Commissioner as a

         25  follow- up to sort of like, sort of like the
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          2  colloquy that he and I engaged in, just to kind of

          3  reinforce it. You know, send me a copy of it, and

          4  we'll just, you know, because I'm very supportive of

          5  what you do and, which I think there's sort of broad

          6  support for the types of things that you and

          7  everyone in this panel are trying to do.

          8                 So, to the extent that, by the

          9  Commissioner's own admission, he wished this was

         10  moving faster, and stuff like that. So, maybe

         11  there's a, maybe we could do some group inspiration.

         12  So, you know, send him something and then send it to

         13  me and I'll like reinforce it and next year at

         14  budget time, we'll kick it around and make sure, you

         15  know, we get everything we can for good work like

         16  that, you know?  That's okay?

         17                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  Yea.  Excellent.  It

         18  seems like we hear one voice here for City- wide

         19  cost- effective ecology and I see that as a,

         20  something that, there's a way to document how this

         21  can actually work.  At first, he said if I build

         22  Central Park, the property values will go up and the

         23  landscape will look better, and we can do the same

         24  thing all around the City, I think.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, I'm for
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          2  that, I'm for that.  Genie, thank you, as always,

          3  for coming and for all of your great work and

          4  support.  And, if you want to write a letter to the

          5  Commissioner too, go ahead, and let me know about

          6  it, you know, because I just want, I really like

          7  this stuff and I really want to make it happen.

          8  Bradford, I know you had a lot of, you had many

          9  points that were included in your testimony, but, to

         10  the extent that we had some of those points in

         11  writing, that would like help us.  You know, so that

         12  would be, that would be great.

         13                 MR. SEWELL:  Yeah, I'll submit the

         14  testimony in writing afterwards.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Great, great,

         16  that would be super.  Andy, as always, I'm still

         17  waiting for that boat ride, you know what I mean?

         18  I'm still waiting for that boat ride.  I know I say

         19  I'm going to go and I end up not going or whatever.

         20  But, I know that you -- okay -- I know that you had

         21  real specific concerns as well.  So, if you could

         22  share whatever, you know, once you get a chance to

         23  take a look at this, you know, let us know what we

         24  can do.  Reed, I think we already have your stuff in

         25  writing, but I know you're going to take a look at
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          2  this and let us know what's up.

          3                 Also, people should know that I, and

          4  this gets to Mr. Craft, as well, and you all made a

          5  statement about green buildings and what we can do.

          6  I've got a bunch of green building stuff that's in

          7  the hopper right now, right?  We've got like a

          8  reflective roof thing that could alter the housing

          9  buildings that could include like a green roof.

         10                 We've got a green building thing,

         11  where we're asking -- yes, the Speaker, myself, the

         12  Speaker and me or me and the Speaker, what is it?

         13  Speaker and me, okay, fine, I'm second -- about, you

         14  know, holding the City to a green building sort of,

         15  you know, by the LEED standards requiring that all,

         16  the City construction projects that are significant

         17  are held to the LEED silver standard, and I talk

         18  about that before the Environmental Business

         19  Association.  So, we are moving forward with that.

         20  So, that kind of concludes my response to your good

         21  testimony.  If any, or if David has something to

         22  say.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you.  I

         24  do.  I made a note to myself, here we go.  Okay,

         25  here's one basic question, and I guess I want to
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          2  address this to Mr. Sewell, Mr. Super and Andy

          3  Willner as well.  Mr. Sewell, in particular, your

          4  testimony was pretty damning, I mean I don't want to

          5  characterize it, but what I took away, bottom line

          6  of your testimony was that this is -- well, let me

          7  ask you.  Does the, in your view, does the revised

          8  consent decree, is the revised consent decree better

          9  or worse for New York Harbor than the existing

         10  consent decree?

         11                 MR. SEWELL:  Well, it's a question

         12  loaded with hypotheticals, because the existing

         13  consent decree wasn't implemented.  If it had been

         14  implemented by now, we would have had a significant

         15  improvement in CSO abatement --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- But I, okay,

         17  let me interrupt --

         18                 MR. SEWELL: Now, if we --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Just because

         20  I do, I want to make sure I'm clear on it, and I

         21  want to make sure you're clear and we're on the same

         22  place here.  The 1992 consent decree is in effect

         23  today, I believe, and correct me if I'm wrong,

         24  anybody correct me, as a binding order on New York

         25  City.  New York City is required, and you know Mr.
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          2  Willner made kind of glancing reference, a reference

          3  to courts of law, but they are out there today, you

          4  know, and available to enforce that consent decree,

          5  I believe.  Now, so that is, that is, those are the

          6  set of requirements that New York City is operating

          7  under, you know, September 8, 2004.

          8                 The proposal, that I understand, is

          9  before DEC, is to change that consent decree and, I

         10  mean, my initial, and again, I haven't had a chance

         11  to read it in depth because it was just provided,

         12  actually it was provided to the Committee yesterday,

         13  but it was made public today.  It's my initial read

         14  on it, is that it's a relaxing of the 1992 consent

         15  decree.  In other words, it's less stringent

         16  requirements upon, on the City.  So, my question to

         17  you is, am I correct?  Is that, if DEC agrees to

         18  modify the consent decree, as proposed, will that

         19  be, is that better or worse for New York City, for

         20  New York Harbor and New York City's waterways?

         21                 MR. SEWELL:  You know, I would agree

         22  that's it's a relaxing in two respects, and it's an

         23  opportunity in one respect. It's a relaxing in that

         24  it's, it's end of the pipe heavy, lots of, still a

         25  fair number of sort of physical improvements that
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          2  will be done by DEP and DEP acting alone.  And,

          3  many, they're sort of 20th century type of

          4  improvements that were sort of held over from the

          5   '92 Consent Order, and, but it relaxes the schedule

          6  for those tremendously, and it doesn't even provide

          7  an end schedule for a number of those components

          8  held over from the '92 plan.

          9                 So, in that sense, it's a relaxing of

         10  what has been long envisioned as a CSO abatement

         11  plan for New York City and a weakening, and it's a

         12  weakening in another respect, in that it infolds

         13  this effort to revisit the water quality standards

         14  and use classifications around the City to see if we

         15  can get away with not doing CSO abatement at all,

         16  because we can say, let's, you change the goal post

         17  to move them up, you don't need to do the abatement.

         18                 Now, it's an opportunity, finally, in

         19  that there's an opportunity of pulled in these green

         20  building concepts and to do things differently than

         21  how we were thinking about this in the early  90's.

         22  There's a need to do that.  No one disagrees with

         23  that, that, however you want to describe the  '92

         24  Consent Order and what it included and different

         25  people describe it in different ways.
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          2                 Generally though, it was a, it was

          3  heavy on these physical storage tanks, and there are

          4  potentially other ways of doing things, or things

          5  that should be added on top of some sub set of those

          6  storage tanks, specifically, source prevention,

          7  green buildings, stuff up front, not stuff at the

          8  end of the pipe.  This process in front of us, if we

          9  all play our cards right, provides an opportunity to

         10  get those things infolded into the ACO and actually

         11  come out with a, recognizing that we're, we're

         12  starting in some practical sense from ground zero.

         13  We can't revisit the last ten years.  We can move

         14  things forward expeditiously and with the best

         15  possible innovative environmental planning.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Do you, I'm

         17  sorry, Mr. Sewell, do you anticipate filing comments

         18  with DEC?

         19                 MR. SEWELL:  Oh, certainly.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  And, pardon my

         21  ignorance, I'm, you know, not familiar with kind of

         22  the protocol for this sort of thing with your

         23  practice, do you anticipate, in your comments,

         24  having a conclusion that will either say, we, you

         25  know, urge DEC to adopt this or not to adopt it?
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          2                 MR. SEWELL:  I would anticipate that,

          3  but I can't say definitively.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.

          5                 MR. SUPER:  I would agree with Mr.

          6  Sewell's comments and Riverkeeper will also be

          7  commenting on the proposed Consent Order, and then,

          8  where the process will go from there, is we'll be

          9  back in front of the Administrative Law Judge for

         10  GEC, Judge Cassuto (phonetic) and Judge Cassuto will

         11  determine whether the permits in conjunction with

         12  the Consent Order meet all Federal and State

         13  requirements.  He will then recommend to the

         14  Commissioner of DEC what the permits should say.

         15  The DEC Commissioner will issue final permits, and

         16  if there'll still not adequate, then any member of

         17  the public, including our organizations, could then

         18  challenge that in State court.

         19                 The, comparing the old Consent Order

         20  to the new one, it is a little difficult to do, and

         21  the old Consent Order, all of the milestones and

         22  dates have been passed and missed.  So, there's no

         23  way to get back to that, there's no way to enforce

         24  it.

         25                 You could say the new Consent Order
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          2  would do, take exactly the same measures that the

          3  old one would, but with new dates, and it would have

          4  to go out a number of years in the future, and

          5  that's probably not the best way to do, to do it.

          6  It probably makes sense to look from where we sit

          7  today, in 2004, and what's the best way to

          8  accomplish what we want to accomplish in that period

          9  of time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, that's a

         11  very helpful answer.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         13  Thank you all very much for your patience and for --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- I'm sorry,

         15  before the panel goes, just because the, and,

         16  there's so much here to talk about, we didn't get a

         17  chance with the Commissioner, but Intro. 162, which

         18  is an example of a green building bill, your written

         19  statement, Mr. Super, suggests that it would be

         20  useful, again, the concept here is to permit, in

         21  parts of the City where it would be feasible, permit

         22  builders of homes and commercial buildings to simply

         23  drain their storm water onto the ground, rather than

         24  into the sewer system.

         25                 Again, believe me, nobody want, I
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          2  don't want to do anything that's going to result in

          3  flooded basements, so maybe it's not a good idea.

          4  But, my question is, Mr. Super, and I'd be curious

          5  of the NRDC view, would that be a useful step in

          6  alleviating, in a small degree, but alleviating some

          7  of the pressure on the combined sewer system?

          8                 MR. SUPER:  I would think so, with

          9  the caveat that you just mentioned, that we have to

         10  make sure that we're not going cause flooding or

         11  other problems, and I haven't had an opportunity to

         12  get a technical analysis of that and don't know

         13  that.  But, the principle, yes, of course,

         14  infiltrating storm water into drywells or into the

         15  soil, is, every gallon that we take out of the

         16  system is a gallon that would otherwise have to be

         17  treated at greater expense elsewhere, or otherwise,

         18  it's going to pollute our waterways.  So, I think

         19  it's the right direction.

         20                 MR. SEWELL:  And NRDC would echo

         21  Reed's comments. In principle, it's fine, but, you

         22  know, we do need to focus on adequate technical

         23  standards in oversight to make sure there aren't

         24  ancillary environmental problems created.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          3  thank you all very much, we appreciate it.  So, now,

          4  the final panel, Franco Montalto of eDesign

          5  Dynamics, Linda Eskenas, North Shore Waterfront

          6  Greenbelt, Shannon Stone, Community Environmental

          7  Center, Linda Cox, of the Bronx River Alliance, and

          8  Karen Argenti.

          9                 Now, I called them in a certain

         10  order, but there was no rhyme or reason to the

         11  order, so, whatever order kind of makes sense.  So,

         12  what we have to do is we're going to have Donna De

         13  Constanzo, who will administer the oath or

         14  affirmation, and then we will -- oops someone's

         15  ringing -- okay, so, we'll do a group swear in.  So,

         16  Donna, if you will.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Please raise

         18  your right hands.  In the testimony that you are

         19  about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the

         20  truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         21                 MR. MONTALTO:  I do.

         22                 MS. ESKENAS:  I do.

         23                 MS. COX:  I do.

         24                 MS. STONE:  I do.

         25                 MS. ARGENTI:  I do.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          4  Thank you. As I said, thank you for your patience,

          5  thank you for being here, thank you for your

          6  interest in this important issue, and whatever order

          7  you wish to proceed, we will follow the same, you

          8  know, paradigm that we did with the last panel.  So,

          9  who wants to be first?  Okay.  So much for ladies

         10  first, I guess.  Okay.  So you'd have to state your

         11  name for the record.

         12                 MR. MONTALTO:  Franco Montalto.  A

         13  lot of the comments that I wanted to make have

         14  already been touched on in the previous panel.  I'm

         15  a hydrologist and an engineer and have been working

         16  with a lot of urban water issues for years now --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- You have to

         18  speak right into the microphone and speak loudly.

         19                 MR. MONTALTO:  Sure.  My comments are

         20  kind of more directed towards the text of Intro.

         21  162, which I had a chance to look over a bit.  I

         22  just want to kind of reiterate, there's an EPA study

         23  that says 40 percent of runoff generated from the

         24  surface of New York City is generated on private

         25  property, private roofs and driveways.
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          2                 The City is, the City is a piece of

          3  land and it is a landscape, and the design of the

          4  little individual pieces that compose that landscape

          5  is critical and, therefore, the building code and

          6  what it does or does not facilitate or allow in

          7  terms of how a specific site, private site, could be

          8  configured with regard to water, is key.

          9                 I taught a class recently at Cooper

         10  Union and I had my students look at the potential

         11  for dealing with the CSO issue on private property,

         12  and we took a subwater shed in the Gowanus Canal

         13  area and looked at everywhere where it was

         14  technically feasible to do a lot of the, to

         15  implement a lot of strategies that we've been

         16  talking about, porous pavement, green roofs,

         17  infiltration, rain water harvesting.  And, came up

         18  with a cost- effectiveness study that compared these

         19  type of lot level approaches to solving, to reducing

         20  the volume of CSO discharge to this end of pipe

         21  approach.

         22                 Came up with some very encouraging

         23  results, which, you know, for the same level of

         24  investment, potentially could get double the

         25  reduction of CSO volume, or stated differently, you
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          2  could achieve the same reduction in CSO discharge

          3  for approximately half the level of investment, by

          4  investing in these type of, these type of strategies

          5  to reconfigure private property.

          6                 The building code, as we know,

          7  doesn't allow or address a lot of these individual

          8  technologies.  So, I kind of commend and appreciate

          9  the effort to incorporate into Intro. 162 this, this

         10  capacity for individual sites to be reconfigured for

         11  storm water capture.  However, the emphasis on

         12  disposal maybe doesn't completely address what could

         13  be addressed.  Disposal, on- site disposal and what

         14  that entails is, I guess, up for debate.  But, on-

         15  site disposal of storm water is great in

         16  infiltration pits and in leach fields and in dry

         17  wells.

         18                 However, a lot of times site

         19  conditions, specific site conditions, local site

         20  conditions, preclude their implementation.  For

         21  example, high bedrock or shallow depth to ground

         22  water, or the fact that just many spaces, the

         23  footprint of a building or the impervious area

         24  that's on the lot, in many cases, just precludes, in

         25  terms of space limitations, the use of infiltration

                                                            136

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND WATERFRONTS

          2  or the implementation of infiltration.

          3                 So, I guess, the comment I wanted to

          4  make is that maybe Intro. 162 could be amended to

          5  some extent to include re use options, to include

          6  kind of a consideration of storm water, not

          7  necessarily as a waste that needs to be disposed,

          8  but as a resource that could be implemented, that

          9  could be utilized locally.

         10                 You know, we have Solare (phonetic)

         11  building, which is the first high- rise residential

         12  building in the City to really take that type of

         13  approach with gray water recycling.  You mentioned

         14  previously, where the potential for using storm

         15  water for landscape irrigation, either on- site or

         16  in neighborhood parks, storm water's been used for

         17  HVAC systems, storm water can be harvested, the

         18  water resources group Green Thumb New York, they're

         19  working on, there are projects for harvesting green

         20  water, rain water to be used for in community

         21  gardens, street cleaning, car washing, and a variety

         22  of other industrial ecology type of applications,

         23  car washes, and the like, which could be, could,

         24  could kind of connect with the CSO policy and the

         25  way that we're dealing with water in urban areas.
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          2                 Also, finally, ecological restoration

          3  efforts. The Army Corps of Engineers is working in

          4  the Gowanus Canal on restoration projects.  They're

          5  just initiating a $5 million project, and part of

          6  that project involves creating wetlands. These

          7  wetlands could also be fed by storm water.

          8                 So, kind of updating this Intro. 162

          9  to address not just the disposal of storm water, but

         10  also the re- use of storm water and to kind of

         11  encourage the re- use and use of storm water for

         12  these kind of ecological and industrial benefits on

         13  sites, to me, seems like something valuable.

         14                 To do that, however, I think that the

         15  bill could be also amended to differentiate between

         16  different types of storm water.  Storm water from

         17  streets is contaminated with materials that storm

         18  water from roofs is not.  Storm water from lawns is

         19  contaminated with other materials.  So, you know,

         20  somehow differentiating the types of storm water

         21  that are generated and the uses of that storm water,

         22  potential uses of that storm water, on site, for

         23  building purposes, could kind of help us in a

         24  practical way to increase the hydrologic and

         25  ecological value of the urban landscape in the City.
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          2    So, that was my comment.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          4  Thank you very much.  Who's next?  Linda, right?

          5                 MS. ESKENAS:  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Please

          7  state your name for the record.

          8                 MS. ESKENAS: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And proceed with

         10  your testimony.

         11                 MS. ESKENAS:  Linda Eskenas.  The

         12  North Shore Waterfront Greenbelt.  My testimony is

         13  not technical, and it's about a specific place and

         14  suggestion.  It's, the historic waterfront community

         15  of West Brighton, along the Kill Van Kull in Staten

         16  Island is an extraordinary place of Indian Burial

         17  Grounds and sacred sites and ancient fishing grounds

         18  and historic houses and where a revolutionary war

         19  fort was and where civil war soldiers lie buried, it

         20  was an abolitionist headquarters and a littery

         21  enclave.  It was one of the first settlements of

         22  human beings on the northeast coast.  This is an

         23  important asset to New York, yet this extraordinary

         24  place has been denigrated and is constantly under

         25  assault.
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          2                 However, The North Shore Waterfront

          3  Greenbelt has worked for 20 years and has succeeded

          4  in creating a waterfront park under the New York

          5  City Parks Department, which will bring a

          6  renaissance, an environmental, economic and cultural

          7  renaissance to this extraordinary waterfront, which

          8  was, is now totally wasted.

          9                 I have two specific things, but what

         10  The North Shore Waterfront, there are two pieces of

         11  acreage, the Kill Van Kull and between the Kill Van

         12  Kull and Richmond Terrace, which is, was once an

         13  Indian footpath and is actually our shore road, and

         14  the idea of The North Shore Greenbelt is to restore

         15  a connection between these historical waterfront

         16  communities with their own waterfront from which

         17  they've been unnaturally severed and to connect them

         18  with each other.

         19                 But, to have this continuation --

         20  we've had a problem with the DEP, with the, it's

         21  called the Port Richmond Sewer Treatment Plant.

         22  When it was put in, we were offered no amenities,

         23  and in fact, this particular sewer treatment plant

         24  is one of our worst polluters.  The smell is

         25  extraordinary, and it's had a negative impact on the
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          2  whole community, and two, as I said, lots, when they

          3  were, came up, when they were owned by the City, or

          4  they were available, have been on the Community

          5  Board One budget request list as being part of,

          6  actually for the expansion of the North Shore

          7  Waterfront Greenbelt.  And, this we see, and

          8  suggestions that we have heard here, these would be

          9  environmental parks at a simple grassroots level,

         10  but it would also restore our waterfront, which I

         11  know is one of the Mayor's priorities, and

         12  everything does seem to depend on the waterfront,

         13  doesn't it?

         14                 I mean the restoration of places that

         15  have been almost obliterated, but are there.  All

         16  these things would cost almost nothing, but would

         17  create an extraordinary place, and, so, we need, we

         18  do need help.  We do need this.  It's Block 185, Lot

         19  170 and Lot 185, which we envision as what we've,

         20  I've heard spoken here today, of not only dog runs

         21  and a place for the Indians to come back and have

         22  pow- wows, but to have an environmental park and put

         23  forth some of the, the things that will clean our

         24  water and so forth, and this is the North Shore

         25  Greenbelt and the idea of this space.
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          2                 It would go up to, we have a strip of

          3  land along the water, and then the railroad tracks,

          4  and I designed, helped design with City Planning,

          5  the greenway trail that would go to the ferry, and

          6  between that and Richmond Terrace should be open

          7  space and these two pieces of acreage would achieve

          8  that.  We simply need DEP to transfer them to the

          9  Parks Department.  The Parks Department wants them,

         10  both Tom Poulo, our excellent Parks Commissioner and

         11  Commissioner Benepe.  That's something I, you know,

         12  that is, I mean for almost an effort that is not,

         13  that is really minor, I think we can turn around

         14  something and create an asset for the City that

         15  cannot be measured.

         16                 I have two very specific things, I

         17  mean they're almost examples of what is wrong.  Oh,

         18  I do want to say something very positive, that we

         19  have worked for 20 years in creating a waterfront

         20  park, and we do have that, which was an absolute

         21  miracle.  It was the money that Port Authority had,

         22  $30 million for New York and $30 million for New

         23  Jersey for parks.  I believe we are the only one

         24  that was funded and we got it, which can only be

         25  called a miracle.
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          2                 But, the high ground, the high ground

          3  is above the Kill, and so water runs down from the

          4  high ground, along to Richmond Terrace, and the

          5  catch basins, unfortunately, are overflowing.  This

          6  is because, for instance, there is a transfer

          7  station next to where people live that collects

          8  construction debris and they wash it down and use

          9  the public sewers.  So, these sewers then overflow

         10  and it goes on for three blocks or more.  In the

         11  Winter, this becomes ice.  Of course, when it dries

         12  all the toxic chemicals go into the air and in,

         13  ultimately into our water.  This would be on Van

         14  Street, and the company that's doing this is Stokes

         15  (phonetic), it's on Van Street at --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Excuse me.  At

         17  the end of this panel, I'm going to have an

         18  announcement on this --

         19                 MS. ESKENAS: Sure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- That I think

         21  you'll find satisfactory --

         22                 MS. ESKENAS: Thank you.  Only, an

         23  additional problem is that when the sewer breaks,

         24  when everything is --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We'll take care

                                                            143

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND WATERFRONTS

          2  of --

          3                 MS. ESKENAS:  -- Retard --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Trust me, I got

          5  it --

          6                 MS. ESKENAS: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I got it, at the

          8  end, I'm going to say something, it's going to be

          9  the magic ball, trust me --

         10                 MS. ESKENAS: Great.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You don't even

         12  have to, I got it.

         13                 MS. ESKENAS:  But anyway, the tar is

         14  above, I mean it prevents the water from going into

         15  the sewer, it's absolutely ridiculous.  So, you

         16  know, these problems are, and, of course, these

         17  horrible townhouses, which overburden our structures

         18   --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I got it, trust

         20  me, you're going to be very happy when I say what

         21  I've got to say.

         22                 MS. ESKENAS:  Well, we've been

         23  waiting to be happy --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         25                 MS. ESKENAS:  -- For a really long
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          2  time.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You bet.  Hi.

          4                 MS. COX:  Hi.  I'm Linda Cox of the

          5  Bronx River Alliance.  Thank you for holding this

          6  important hearing today --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Okay --

          8                 MS. COX:  -- And for inviting our

          9  testimony --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- I've got you

         11  right here, okay --

         12                 MS. COX:  The Bronx River Alliance is

         13  a partnership of some 70 community organizations and

         14  public agencies and we're all working together to

         15  protect and restore the Bronx River.

         16                 When Commissioner Ward talked about

         17  those small tributaries, small watersheds, that's

         18  what we are.  And, we're also, interestingly, the

         19  only fresh water river in New York City. We have

         20  several CSO's along the Bronx River, one of those

         21  was slated for a holding tank, which now, he has

         22  indicated, they propose not to do.  They propose,

         23  instead, to control floatables along the Bronx

         24  River, which would be a nice thing for them to do,

         25  and something they do to some degree now.
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          2                 If I could bring you along to the

          3  Bronx River tomorrow, we'd go to Drew Garden, and

          4  once the sun came out, it be very beautiful along

          5  the river, but it would stink because of the CSO

          6  that's right there.  When people canoe down our

          7  river, and we're bringing 600 people out on that

          8  river this Summer, we have to hope that they will

          9  not fall out of the river.  There, in particular, or

         10  anywhere along the river, because of the pollutants

         11  in the river.  People fish along the river and their

         12  fish would be healthier to eat and more plentiful if

         13  we could improve the ecological habitat of the

         14  river.

         15                 DEP's, I haven't read the consent

         16  agreement yet, just as you have not, but as far as I

         17  can tell, basically, no more holding tank and

         18  control floatables.  This does not really address

         19  any of these conditions that I'm talking about on

         20  the Bronx River.  Something more is needed.  And, we

         21  heard lots of testimony, I think, about what that

         22  something more could be, which really is innovative

         23  storm water management techniques. The kind of

         24  things that Paul Mankiewicz talked about and has

         25  helped us to think about in the Bronx River
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          2  Alliance.

          3                 We're right now doing, creating, a

          4  storm water management and ecological restoration

          5  plan for the Bronx River. We're working very closely

          6  with Westchester County on that and they are doing

          7  something similar that will improve the upwater

          8  conditions of the river.  We recently held a

          9  workshop back in June, where many public agencies

         10  and community agency representatives came and we

         11  looked in the watershed to find places where you

         12  could do this kind of upland storm water managements

         13  practices, making use of park land to retain water

         14  and to allow water infiltration, retrofit of parking

         15  lots, use of green streets for more than just

         16  greening, but also for water retention, and a

         17  variety of things that could be done, green roofs,

         18  things that would improve the water quality in the

         19  Bronx River, and also improve the air quality of an

         20  intensely built up portion of the City.

         21                 We are, the Bronx River watershed,

         22  therefore, kind of represents a perfect place to be

         23  trying out these storm water management techniques.

         24  I think we really should be looking for DEP to take

         25  the dollars, the $42 million that they were talking
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          2  about for this holding tank and applying it, not in

          3  dribs and drabs, but in a really large scale way to

          4  begin doing these kinds of storm water management

          5  techniques that can reduce the flows into the CSO

          6  system, into the storm water system.  And, we think

          7  we offer a perfect place to begin going that and

          8  also a perfect place to kind of model those

          9  practices so that they could be adopted throughout

         10  the City.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         12  Thank you very much.  I'll have something to say

         13  about that too.  Let me guess, you're Shannon Stone?

         14                 MS. STONE:  Yea.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right?  How'd I

         16  know? You have to say your name for the record

         17  anyway, even though I guessed it.

         18                 MS. STONE:  My name is Shannon Stone

         19  and I'm with the Community Environmental Center --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

         21  talk right into the microphone --

         22                 MS. STONE:  Okay.  Good afternoon.

         23  Thank you Councilman Gennaro and Councilman Yassky

         24  for the opportunity to speak today regarding Intro.

         25  162, a bill that would alleviate the storm water
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          2  crisis facing New York City.

          3                 My focus is really narrow.  It 's

          4  mostly on green roofs today.  Basically, the

          5  Community Environmental Center, let me explain what

          6  we do.  We're a non- profit environmental

          7  organization in Long Island City that provides

          8  weatherization services and energy retrofits to low

          9  income housing in New York.

         10                 We've also recently begun a green

         11  building program, and we've been conducting a cost

         12  benefit analysis of greening New York City

         13  affordable housing according to the credit- based

         14  LEED standards in an effort to examine whether green

         15  building, building designed and constructed to

         16  greatly reduce environmental impacts, while

         17  improving the quality of life for occupants really

         18  does come at a prohibitive initial cost.

         19                 Issued by the U.S. Green Building

         20  Council, LEED, standing for Leadership in Energy and

         21  Environmental Design, has quickly become the

         22  national standard of green building in the United

         23  States.  We are comparing the initial costs of

         24  achieving LEED standards in New York City

         25  residential buildings with our calculations of the
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          2  long- term cost savings and benefits to the City as

          3  a whole in terms of reduced consumption of

          4  electricity and avoided costs for tenants and

          5  owners, reduced peak demand for electricity,

          6  possible health benefits from improved indoor air

          7  quality, reduction in carbon dioxide emissions and,

          8  finally, avoided waste water and storm water

          9  infrastructure costs.

         10                 So, it is this last analysis that is

         11  of interest to you today.  LEED standards

         12  specifically address storm water runoff by awarding

         13  a credit or point based on the amount of storm water

         14  disposed of, disposed of on a building site.  In

         15  sites with greater imperviousness of 50 percent,

         16  which includes most New York City building sites,

         17  the building must reduce storm water imperviousness

         18  by 25 percent.

         19                 I've researched a variety of

         20  environmentally sustainable methods regarding on-

         21  site disposal of storm water, and there are many

         22  options that developers from all building spectrums

         23  can utilize from rain water harvesting systems to

         24  bioretention to green roofs.  Since the predominant

         25  impervious surface type on building lots in New York

                                                            150

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND WATERFRONTS

          2  City seems to be roofs, there are a limited number

          3  of options as to how to reduce storm water rate and

          4  quantity by 25 percent, and these options are rain

          5  water harvesting with green roofs.

          6                 Green roofs can achieve at least two

          7  LEED credits. Not only can they reduce storm water

          8  runoff, but green roofs can also provide a whole

          9  host of other benefits to the buildings, tenants,

         10  owners and the City, including reducing cooling

         11  costs in the building, and lowering the City's peak

         12  electricity demand, reducing the City's urban heat

         13  island effect, as we heard from before, and

         14  improving the City's air quality.

         15                 So, although they have initial costs

         16  higher than typical roofs, green roofs can last

         17  twice as long because the roof membrane is protected

         18  from extreme temperature fluctuations and the sun's

         19  ultraviolet radiation.  Green roofs provide

         20  insulation, resulting in lower heating and cooling

         21  bills, and lowering the peak electric demand in the

         22  City.

         23                 A study done by Environment Canada

         24  found that a green roof, three and a half, 3.9

         25  inches deep on a one- story building could reduce
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          2  Summer cooling costs by 25 percent.  Some green

          3  roofs could literally absorb as much as 75 percent

          4  of a one inch rainfall.

          5                 Portland State University conducted a

          6  study that found that if half of its buildings

          7  downtown, which is a lot, 219 acres, were covered in

          8  green roofs, 66 million gallons would be retained

          9  annually, and result in eliminating 17 million

         10  gallons of combined sewer overflow.

         11                 So, in order for the City to really

         12  benefit from green roofs and have an impact on storm

         13  water runoff in communities, more incentives needs

         14  to be in place for developers and building owners to

         15  install green roofs, and perhaps, if Intro. 162 is

         16  passed, the DEP could grant a storm water allowance

         17  to buildings that install green roofs or rain water

         18  harvesting systems.

         19                 Portland, Oregon, currently, is in

         20  the process of implementing a new storm water

         21  utility rate through a program called the Clean

         22  River Incentive and Discount Program, that provides

         23  discounts for green roofs.  Similarly, with New York

         24  City's comprehensive Water Reuse program, that

         25  reduces water rates by 25 percent, the DEP could
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          2  have a new storm water fee structure that provides a

          3  generous discount on water bills for buildings with

          4  green roofs.  Currently, the waste water fee charged

          5  is 159 percent of the water consumption fee.

          6  Perhaps, that percentage could be reduced by 25

          7  percent as well.

          8                 I also talk about in Germany, where

          9  green roofs are really popular.  Green roofs are

         10  placed on at least seven percent of all new

         11  construction, and their, their policy, their green

         12  roof industry began as a result of policy

         13  implemented. And, now, while the incentives have

         14  winded down, they first, you know, provided

         15  incentives, these incentives have winded down, now

         16  they are simply just impermeable surface fees that

         17  people have to pay unless they have a green roof.

         18                 I was also thinking that, perhaps,

         19  you know, as DEP Commissioner Ward was talking

         20  about, there are some areas in the City where we,

         21  where it really wouldn't make a lot of sense to put

         22  in like these huge really expensive storm water

         23  tanks, and perhaps, things like green roofs would

         24  make a lot more sense, especially in like low lying

         25  areas around these inland waters, the tributaries
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          2  that we were talking about.  That's basically what I

          3  wanted to talk about today.  Thank you for the

          4  opportunity to speak.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          6  Thank you very much for being here.  Here comes

          7  Karen.  Hi Karen.

          8                 MS. ARGENTI:  Hi.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  How you doing?

         10                 MS. ARGENTI:  Good, how are you?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You've got to

         12  state your name for the record --

         13                 MS. ARGENTI: Karen Argenti --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And let me have

         15  it.

         16                 MS. ARGENTI:  I'm going to be really,

         17  you know, quick --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oops.

         19                 MS. ARGENTI:  -- I don't know, I'm

         20  making some noise here or something -- okay?  I'm

         21  with the Friends of Jerome Park Reservoir.  You know

         22  me that way, and the Bronx Council for Environmental

         23  Quality, and sometimes I come and I speak to you

         24  about the Croton Filtration Plant.

         25                 But, today, I'm going to talk about
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          2  some of the things that were mentioned.  One is

          3  about the beaches.  Last year, we did, the Bronx

          4  Council for Environmental Quality and my Committee

          5  on that group, organized a report about the beaches

          6  in the City of New York.  And, the beaches are, I

          7  mean the reason why we did it is the beaches are not

          8  in good shape, and people are swimming when they can

          9  become sick.  I mean, it's not just, the CSO problem

         10  is not just let's make it so that it looks clear.

         11  People actually get sick, and taking a survey of

         12  them is just not going to make it.

         13                 But, the interesting thing is, why is

         14  it that at some point we question what the Federal

         15  rules are, and then in other points we don't?  So,

         16  now, the Commissioner is questioning what the new

         17  Federal rule is to keep the beaches closed.  Most

         18  people who swim in beaches, and some of them are

         19  private, don't know that you really shouldn't swim

         20  two hours after it rains, or a day if it rains for a

         21  long time.  Most people don't have any idea about

         22  what these rules are.

         23                 The second point I'd like to make is

         24  it about Resolution 162 and development.  I think

         25  that's a really good bill.  I think it's something
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          2  that we need in the City.  Today, I came down to the

          3  City Planning Commission to hear a hearing on the

          4  rezoning of my own particular neighborhood, because

          5  the building boom is just tremendous.  With no site,

          6  no way of weighing what you're going to do with

          7  storm water, or what you do with the seats for the

          8  children in the school or where you park your car.

          9  So, all of these things are things that help

         10  communities keep them in tact.

         11                 So, we'd like 162, we'd like it to be

         12  a little bit more specific on how the public can

         13  actually see this bill implemented.  Which agency is

         14  going to take care of it?  How we can see if they're

         15  really doing the right thing with their storm water

         16  or they're not.  I mean, if the Buildings Department

         17  allows people to self- certify and nobody's

         18  monitoring it, it's a problem for us here in the

         19  public, just regular people.

         20                 The third point I'd like to say, is

         21  that I think what we need is a goal for what we're

         22  going to do with the CSO problem.  We don't have a

         23  goal.  We have another end of the pipe solution.

         24  Gee, it sounds like the filtration plant issue once

         25  again.  But, without a goal, we're never going to
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          2  know if we meet it.  So, I thought it was great that

          3  Andy is so patient that he waited from 1992 to now.

          4  That's a tremendous amount of patience, but people

          5  are getting sick with this water.

          6                 My fourth point is that there seems

          7  to be a lack of public outreach.  I know that there

          8  was a CAC and someone from BCQ used to sit on that.

          9  But, that group has not been convened.  So, the

         10  public, I mean, we know about it because we came

         11  down here. But, in general, the public doesn't know

         12  what's going on.  So, I think public participation

         13  needs to be sort of like, you know, increased in the

         14  CSO situation.  And thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you

         16  Karen, and what I'll do, I'll just, maybe do it in

         17  like reverse order.  With regard to your point about

         18  the swimming, you know that Chairman Yassky and I

         19  both made an issue of it to sort of probe that a

         20  little bit, to find out the difference between the

         21  standards, and you know, that is something that is

         22  in the, because it's a Health Department issue, it

         23  would be kind of under the jurisdiction of the

         24  Health Committee chaired by Christine Quinn.

         25                 So, you certainly have my commitment
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          2  and I know David has an interest as well, certainly

          3  as, you know the Chairman of the -- I don't want to

          4  speak for him, he's sitting right here, but, in

          5  probing that particular Health Department related

          6  policy.

          7                 It would be my position that the

          8  people are certainly entitled to, to the most

          9  rigorous standard, and you say, okay, well, it's

         10  okay to swim today, as long as you're using this

         11  standard and not the other standard.  Because if you

         12  use the other standard, then it wouldn't be safe for

         13  your kids to go in the water, I mean what's that all

         14  about.  So --

         15                 MS. ARGENTI: Well, you know, Jim --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Let me just

         17  sort of state that this is something of interest to

         18  myself and to Chairman Yassky.  We will share that

         19  with Chairperson Quinn, because it's really her

         20  agency, the agency that her Committee deals with --

         21                 MS. ARGENTI: If you look at it that

         22  way, but the problem is that you should not have CSO

         23   --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're getting

         25  to my next point --
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          2                 MS. ARGENTI:  -- Next to the beaches

          3   --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're getting

          5  ahead of me --

          6                 MS. ARGENTI: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're getting

          8  ahead of me.  So, with respect to specific, with

          9  regard to CSO actions, anything, of course, and I'll

         10  make the same statement I made to the other, to the

         11  last panel, to the extent that you want to look at

         12  specific changes in this document, please let me

         13  know.  Or, to the extent to which there are CSO

         14  projects or things we may be able to do.  Like I

         15  said, with Paul Mankiewicz, he's, I want to increase

         16  that collaboration between him and DEP.

         17                 Also, just, Linda's point about the

         18  Bronx River. You know, if you would like to propose

         19  some sort of storm water mitigation project with,

         20  with I term sort of like the Mankiewicz principles.

         21  You know what I mean, you know, and it's okay like

         22  we're not getting a tank, but we could do this, then

         23  I, put it on a piece of paper, talk to Paul, talk to

         24  me or whatever, and I purposely put the Commissioner

         25  on, I guess, on notice, so to speak, that I -- I
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          2  didn't mean to say it in that way but I mean he

          3  already knows in a very, you know, bullish on this

          4  approach and I'd like to see it expanded.  We

          5  certainly have, this Committee and this Council

          6  certainly has something to say about water rates and

          7  the budget and all that and how much money he

          8  ultimately gets.

          9                 So, and I know that he personally is,

         10  I think favorably disposed towards that approach.

         11  So, in response to your testimony, if there's a

         12  project that you can conceive of or changes that you

         13  would like to make, then, this is why we have

         14  hearings, which is your other point about the public

         15  process. This is what these hearings are all about.

         16  We send out a notice and have people come together

         17  and voice their views on important issues.  It's not

         18  too late.  We can still talk about this document, we

         19  can still talk about what kind of projects they do,

         20  and the budget, they know we're looking at it now.

         21  So, if we have comments and recommendations, we

         22  suspect we'll get an okay reception.  So, that's

         23  okay.

         24                 Linda, Linda, where's Linda, okay.

         25  Here's what we're going to do here.  Is Alyssa,
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          2  Alyssa you still here?  Okay. Now, we have to get

          3  Alyssa a copy of, do you have an extra copy of your

          4  testimony?  Okay, well, I, you know, you shouldn't

          5  be testifying, so here's what we'll do, so you don't

          6  have to respond to me.  Right after the hearing,

          7  which is going to be in two seconds, we'll give

          8  Alyssa a copy of your testimony that outlines some

          9  of the specific problems that you have, because you

         10  go down to sort of like the block and lot number of

         11  what you'd like to see happen.

         12                 Some of this stuff can be addressed

         13  by DEP, and then also we'll discuss it with

         14  Committee staff, because we could also refer some of

         15  this to your local Council Members, probably

         16  Councilman McMahon, right?  Would it be McMahon?

         17  Okay, and so we will get Council Member McMahon on

         18  the case, and so he can be the liaison between what

         19  you'd like to see and the Parks Department and DEP

         20  and the other players that are involved.  But, your

         21  specific issues about drainage and all that, DEP

         22  could do that.

         23                 So, Alyssa, if you could take a copy

         24  of that testimony and then get back to me on what

         25  ultimately comes of this.  Then, I think that would
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          2  be, I think it was a couple of hours well spent on

          3  your part to come down here.  So, this is good.

          4                 Ms. Shannon, Shannon?  Ms. Stone,

          5  regarding your green building issues, you could have

          6  a more detailed discussion after the hearing with

          7  Committee Council on some of the efforts that the

          8  Council is already contemplating with regard to

          9  green buildings, so we can wire you into that.  So

         10  you can be in the loop on the Council's activities

         11  and you can give us your insight on some of the

         12  proposals that we already have going.

         13                 Franco, you commented on Intro. 162,

         14  and so I thank you for your testimony on that bill

         15  and David might have missed the first couple seconds

         16  of that testimony, if you want to bring him up to

         17  speed with what your testimony was, I'm sure he's

         18  available to you, and presumably, he may have some

         19  questions for you on that.  So, that kind of wraps

         20  it up for me, and thank you all, and again, don't

         21  forget if you have stuff you want to say on this,

         22  please get to the Committee Counsel, Donna De

         23  Costanzo and David you have some things.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I do want to

         25  thank all the panel, actually, for their, almost,
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          2  because they all, almost all did, for their comments

          3  and your support for the concept of 162. It does, I

          4  think, can be refined to be a more effective method

          5  of, way to get at the, get the result that we're

          6  looking for.  I welcome your comments.

          7                 I just wanted to thank and commend

          8  you, Chair Gennaro, for your leadership, not just on

          9  holding the hearing, but on this issue.  This

         10  hearing has only persuaded me even further of its

         11  importance and it is good to know that you are here

         12  in the weed, because, I, with your expertise and

         13  energy that you bring here is terrific.  So, I just

         14  thank you for holding the hearing.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         16  thank you Mr. Chairman for your great advocacy on

         17  the part this issue.  I think Yassky and Gennaro

         18  makes a good team, you know what I mean?  I think we

         19  look alike and we work well together, how's that?

         20  I'd like to say that I look like a young guy, you

         21  know what I mean? I'm just trying to give myself a

         22  little compliment here.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I will seek

         24  afterwards some recommendations for your barber and

         25  so forth.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Thank

          3  you.  Now, with that said, there's nothing more that

          4  we can say after that, so the hearing is adjourned.

          5                 (Meeting adjourned at 4:40 p.m.)
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